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Directors’ Report

Introduction

The directors present their annual report on the affairs of Transport Trading Linuted (“TTL” or the "Company®} and
its subsidiaries (“the Group”) together with the audited financtal statements for the year ended 31 March 2015

The Group has prepared the financral statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the EU (“Adopted IFRSs”}

Principal activity

The principal activity of the Group 15 the provision of passenger transport services within London
Directors
The directors who served during the year were

P Hendy
H Carter
S Allen

M Brown
L Daniels

None of the directors had any beneficial interest in the shares of Transport Trading Limited or its subsidianes
The Group maintains directors’ and officers’ lrability insurance
Employee involvement and communication

Transport Trading Limited recognises the role of its employees in enabling the Group to achieve its business
objectives This s reflected in the Board's commitment to equal opportumities and effective employee
communications

Consultation on Issues affecting the workforce also takes place at regular intervals with representatives from the
Group and trade unions

A strong emphasis 15 placed on the prowision of news through a vanety of media, including intranets {both a TfL
Group-wide intranet and local business units' intranet) and poster campaigns Employees have opportunities to voice
their opinions and ask questions through intranet sites and surveys Face to face brniefings and team meetings are
actively encouraged and are held in all business units across the Group

Equality and inclusion

The Group values the diversity which exists in our city and aspires to this being reflected in our workforce This 1s
reflected not only in our recrutment and selection processes, but also throughout the employment cycle of every
member of staff The Group is commrtted to providing equal opportunities to all employees, irrespective of therr
gender, sexual orientation, mantal status, creed, colour, race, ethnic ongin or disability The commitment extends to
recruitment and selection, traiming, career development, flexible weorking arrangements and promotion and
performance appraisal The Group 1s committed to making reasonable adjustments to a person’s working conditions
wherever possible in accordance with the requirements of the Disabitity Discnimination Act Part of this process
includes a “Case Conference” approach, where all alternatives are explored to secure an individual's future

employment
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Health and safety

The Group 1s committed to continuous improvement in health and safety performance In addition to safety
management as part of normal business activity, safety objectives are identified and regularly reviewed to form short
and longer term plans to improve safety and secunty for customers, employees and contractors The Group uses a
Health, Safety and Environmental (HSE) Management system to manage health and safety This system sets out the
HSE standards across each area of the business, and indicates how compliance should be met and gives methods for
checking compliance and processes for reporting on performance

Political donations

No politrical donations were made during the year (2013/14 £ni)
Dividends

It 15 not proposed to declare a dvidend for the year (2013/14 £nil)
Corporate governance

Transport Trading Limited 1s a wholly owned subsidiary of Transport for London, which appoints all the directors of
the Company The Board of Transport Trading Limited, through its standing orders and management structure,
implements the corperate aims and controls laid down by Transport for London Particutars in respect of corporate
governance can be found in Transport for London’s Annual Governance Statement

The directors who held office at the date of approval of this Directors' Report confirm that, so far as they are each
aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditor 1s unaware, and each director has taken
all the steps that he ought to have taken as a director to make himself aware of any relevant audit Information and to
establish that the Company’s auditor 1s aware of that information

Auditor

Duning 2014 the Group decided to change its auditors in recognition of good governance A number of firms were
approached to tender for the audit and it has been recommended to the Board that Ernst & Young LLP be proposed
for appointment As a result of the tender, KPMG LLP's appointment will expire following the approval of these
accounts by the Board, after which Ernst & Young will become the Group's statutory auditor, subject to approval by
the shareholders

Approved by the Board on 29 June 2015 and signed on behalf of the Board by

yInmE

H Carter

Director
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Strategic Report

Activities and future developments

As stated in the Directors' Report, the principal activity of the Group is the provision of passenger transport services
within London The Group does not anticipate any changes in its principal activities 1n the foreseeable future

Strategic report

2014/15 saw continued strong performance from the Group Once again demand increased, especially on the DLR,
and rebiability and customer satisfaction scores remained high across the Group’s network

Work continued on major projects to improve and extend services across London  Projects included Crossrail, tube
infrastructure and signalling upgrades During the year, improvements delivered included

*  The opening of Pudding Mill Lane DLR station, boosting capacity by an extra 1,100 customers an hour
*  The intreduction of five-car trains on the London Overground network, boosting capacrty by 25 per cent
*  Modernisation and improvements on the Northern line, leading to a 20 per centincrease in capacity

* Following the introduction of contactless payments on buses in December 2012, contactless payment was
successfully launched on the Tube, trams, DLR, London Overground and most National Rall services in
London in September 2014

A full Strategic report for the TfL Group 15 included in the Annual Report of Transport for London This will be
available on its website (www.tfl gov.uk) in due course

Underground and Rail operaticns

The Group’s Underground and Rall operations include

. London Underground, providing passenger rail services across the Capital and into suburban areas,

. Docklands Light Rallway, providing passenger rail services to the east of the Capital,

. London Overground, providing passenger rail services across the Capital and into suburban areas,

. Tramtrack Croydon providing passenger tram services in the Croydon area and across south London,

London Underground

Demand for LU's services continues to grow, with Passenger journeys in 2014/15 reaching a new annual high of
1,305 4 million, an increase of 3 2 per cent {40 8 million journeys| from last year

These passengers are benefitting from improved underlying performance, with LU achieving its best ever customer
satisfactton score This reflects notable improvements in reliability, the delivery of line upgrades, and increased
service frequencies, with only five per cent of those surveyed saying that they had expenenced a disruption or delay

LU has launched a wide ranging programme to transform its service to its customers Since | February, staff at 39 LU
stations have moved out of ticket offices and back areas to public parts of the station, such as ticket halls and
platforms, making them maore wisible and available to help customers To support this, the first [,318 staff members
have undertaken our new customer service training. Whilst the introduction of enhanced ticket machines and
contactless payments have also played an important role in making it easier for our customers to buy tickets and
travel
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Strategic Report (continued)

Underground and Rail operations (continued)

New "S stock" trains, with therr distinctive walk-through design, are now in ttimetabled passenger service on the
Circle, District, Hammersmith & City and Metropolitan lines The spacious and accessible new trains bring increased
capacity, plus air conditioning, wider doors and walkways and automated visual displays They also feature onboard
station announcements, CCTV and dedicated wheelchair areas

The first of the 35 year old District line "D stock” train carnages have been taken out of service, and will be
gradually phased out until the entire fleet has been replaced by the end of 2016 The new trains have one more car
than those they replace, providing a significant increase In capacity

The 55 year old maintenance shed at Upminster has been renovated to accommeodate S stock trains, and a new
faciuty for 180 train operators, managers and support staff has opened at Barking. It provides much improved
faciities for staff including new tramming space

QOur campaign of track renewals continues, with 3| points and crossings renewed and over 48,000 meters of track
and drainage replaced or upgraded during the year The strengthenming of drainage gives better management of
groundwater ingress and so reduces the signal failures 1t causes

Bond Street Station reopened fully on 5 December The Jubilee line platform strengtheming works waill rebieve
congestion and prepare 1t for the forecasted increased growth as Crossral becomes operational in 2018 and more
customers use the station for commuting and leisure travel Excavation for the new northern escalators and the
northern tunnels concourse enlargement has been completed This will provide the Jubilee ine with new Lfts and
escalators improving accessibility and providing step-free access from street to platform

The new entrance and ticket hall at Tottenham Court Road Station opened on |2 January The new entrance on
Oxford Street has three additional escalators leading down from the entrance to the ticket hall and a further three
new escalators leading from the ticket hall to the Northern tine lower concourse Work at the station continues and
by 2016, the station will be fully accessible, with five new lifts providing step-free access from the ticket hall to the
platforms

The modernisation of Vauxhall station 1s 50 per cent complete This work will entarge Vauxhall’s ticket hall with the
aim of reducing congestion and allowing for the 40 per cent passenger growth which 1s expected at the station over
the next few years The ticket hall, subways and stairways are being completely refurbished, with new signage,
CCTV, ceilings, floor and wall tiling i

A new Lft between the ticket hall and platforms, combined with the existing Uft from the bus station to the
Underground ticket hall, will give step-free access from the street to Victoria line trans New station control and
electrical switch rooms, offices, a staff mess room and staff toilets are almost finished

Modernisation work on Hammersmith station 1s now complete and includes a new exit and entrance on Beadon
Road, an extended platform for longer trains and a new gateline In addition, the ticket halt has been retiled and the
floonng refurbished

Following substantial work, the lfts at Russell Square, Gloucester Road and Covent Garden re-opened with
enhanced capacity

Construction work on the old cleaning shed at Ruislp depot is now complete, transforming it from a storage area
into a brand new automatic train controt (ATC) fitment facility that will be used to install the onbeard equipment on
the engineenng vehicle fleet

in June, the Edgware branch became the last section of the Northern line to be switched over to the new signalling
system The new signalling system allows LU to safely run more trains, closer together and at higher average
speeds
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Strategic Report (continued)

Underground and Rail operations [continued)

In October the Mayor and LU Managing Director, Mike Brown, formally launched our design wision for the next
generation of trains to serve customers on the Piccadilly, Bakerloo, Central and Waterloo & City lines These trains,
which we aim to introduce from the mid-2020s, will be the first deep-level Underground trains to feature air-
cooling They will also be more accessible than the trains they replace, providing step-free access from the
platform to the cars, and will also have wider doors and a walk-through design similar to the new trains on London
Overground and the Metropolitan, Circle, Hammersmith & City and District lines The new trains will be introduced
as part of a wide-ranging modernisation project which will increase capacity on the four lines menticned above by
up to 60 per cent

Docklands Light Rallway

The year saw operational performance improve to record levels, especially in the annual departure score of 99 3%,
which was a new record for Docklands Light Rallway {*DLR”}) DLR also achieved its highest ever full year Customer
Satisfaction Survey (CSS) score of 89, three points better than target This performance was achieved against a
background where annual ndership increased to | 10 2 million passengers - 8 5% higher than in the previous year
and the highest in DLR's history

The year also saw the change of Franchisee from Serco Limited to Keolis Amey Docklands Limited from 7
December 2014 This was following a successful bidding process for a new franchisee to maintain and operate the
network until Apnl 2021, with an option for this to be extended until 2023

Full year demand on the Emirates Air Line (EAL) was | 54 millon passenger journeys, representing year on year
growth of 2 1% Full year availability was 96 4%, which was an improvement of | 4% from 2013/14 The full year
CS5 score of 93 ts the highest since the EAL opened

Rail for London

Rail for London ("RFL") 1s responsible for the operation of the London Overground ["LO”) and Infrastructure
maintenance for the East London line London Overground 1s an orbital radway consisting of the North London,
West London, Barking to Gospel Oak and Euston to Watford Junction lines {the north London Railway), as well as
the East London line and the New South London line from Queen’s Road Peckham through to Clapham Junction

In the year LO carned 139 8 million peopte, 3% more than the previous year, and customer satisfaction scores
remained strong at 83%, up |% on last year

LO's operational performance, as measured by the public perfformance measure {PPM) was 95.2% at the end of the
year This was significantly higher than the national average for train operators of 89 7%, and secured LO third place
in the national PPM league

The programme to equip all 20 trains on London Overground's East London line with an extra car, to make five car
trains, was completed during the year This 1s now being extended to the North London and West London lines
Work to Increase the capacity of Brondesbury station was completed duning the year The ticket hall s now more
than double its ongmal area and has twice as many ticket gates Dunng the works, the opportunity was taken to
replace flooring, to waterproof walls and ceilings, and to install an electronic service update board and two new
ticket machines

Tramtrack Croydon

Tramtrack Croydon (“TCL") passenger journeys were 30 9m, marginally down on last year's 31 2Zm  Throughout the
first three quarters of the year services suffered from performance i1ssues which can largely be attributed to
problems with fleet maintenance This has been successfully addressed by the transferring tram fleet maintenance
in-house in December 2014  Since the transfer of tram fleet maintenance, tram availability has increased and 1s now
the highest it has been for over a year

Surface Transport
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Strategic Report (continued)

The Group’s Surface Transport operations include

*  London Buses, which manages bus services in London It plans routes, specifies service levels and monitors
service quality The bus services are operated by private companies, which work under contract,

*  The Barclays Cycle Hire Scheme which provides bicycles for hire by the generat public,

»  Dial-a-Ride, which provides door-to-door transport for Londoners with disabilities,

*  Victona Coach Station, which 1s the coach travel 'hub’ of central London and serves both the UK and
continental Europe, handling around 12 0 million passengers per year travelling on more than 480,000 coaches,

*  London River Services, which owns and operates nine passenger piers on the Thames, licenses boat services
using those piers and manages the operation of the Woolwich Ferry

London Buses

London Bus Services Ltd’s total number of passenger journeys for the year was 2,385 million (2013/14 2,382
million*) The results for the year show an on-going increase in passenger demand Bus network income of £1,538
million for the year was 2 5% higher than the previous year's total of £1,501 million

Bus services remained under regular review, taking account of changing travel needs and operating conditions
Alterations included routeings, frequencies, vehicle types and schedules

London's buses went cash free in July 2014 following extensive consultation The new one-more journey feature
on Oyster was successfully rolled out to the bus network in June 2014 allowing passengers to make one more bus
Jjourney should they have insufficient pay as you go credit to travel This was one of several mitgation factors
implemented pror to the launch

The crucial role the bus plays in helping London retain its pre-eminence as a world-class city was celebrated as part
of the Year of the Bus from the start of 2014

In Apnl digital arnval information was introduced at bus stops, bus stations and on large Countdown screens at
several busy bus stations More than 60 smartphone bus travel apps now use Tfl.’s data, displaying armval times at
all 19,500 bus stops and Countdown information at public places such as hospitals and schools

TfL Board granted approval to procure an additional 200 New Routemaster vehicles taking the total order to 800 to
be delivered by 2016 Thirteen bus routes have now converted to New Routemaster bring the total to over 430
buses Data shows their average fuel consumption i1s almost 50 per cent lower than the previous buses

The first British-built pure electnic buses began running 1n west London in July 2014 and two electne buses were
intreduced in Croydon in December 2014 It was announced, in March 2015 that the first all electric bus route Is to
be introduced between South Croydon and Norwood Junction (route 312)

The Company's bus retrofit programme, the largest in the world, was completed in July 2014 and now more than
1,300 buses, on more than 50 London routes, are cleaner with a 90 per cent reduction in nitrogen oxide {NOx}
emissions

The proportion of the bus fleet served by low-carbon emission and quieter diesel-electric buses 1s now at 14 per
cent There are now 1,250 hybrids in the fleet and the total will now grow to 1,700 hybnds by 2016, around 20% of
the fleet

* Prior year bus passenger journeys have been adjusted for consistency with TfL's new methodology for measunng
journeys
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Strategic Report (continued)

Surface Transport (continued)
Cycle Hire

The Cycle Hire scheme continues to underpin the growth of cycling in London In 2014/15 the bikes were hired
more than ten million tmes The scheme now has over 10,000 bikes and over 700 docking stattons To celebrate
it's fourth birthday Cycle Hire offered a free weekend in August 2014, allowing customers to make as many trips as
they liked for free On Chnistmas Day 2014, almost 40,000 cycle hire journeys were made, beating the previous
year’s Christmas Day record by 41 per cent and marking the second highest day ever for non-member hires In
January 2015 the scheme successfully implemented a tanff change to simplify hire charges for customers who are
now charged a flat £2 for each 30 minute period after the inimal free 30 minute peniod In February 2015 Santander
was announced as the new sponsor in a seven year, £43 75m partnership with an additional £7m activation fund

Dial-a-Ride

Dral-a-Ride (“DaR") services form a fundamental and integral part of the Mayor's Transport Strategy by providing a
door to door transport service for members of the public who are unable to access mainstream public transport
due to mobility impairment Dunng the year to 31 March 2015, Dial a Ride scheduled 90 2% of all trip requests
received which was slightly higher than target of 90 0% After on the day/eve cancellations of scheduled trips by
passengers, the service delivered 1,300, | 36 trips which was 4 0% less thann 2013/14 (1,355,580) but continued to
be amongst the highest annual total trips recorded by the service since it began in the 1980s Dunng the first
quarter of the year a minonty of operational grades participated in several weeks of industrial action short of a
strike in support of their pay claim The dispute was resolved following talks at ACAS

Customer satisfaction remained high at 92% {2013/14 92%) Overall demand for the Dial a Ride service reduced by
3 6% compared to the previous year The nature of demand continued to show change during the year, impacted
by the wider economic conditions not only affecting individual personal activity but also as the provision of some
public and chantable funded social activities reduced or changed across London which impacted people’s travel
patterns

Victoria Coach Station

Victona Coach Station (“VCS”) provided facilities for circa 14 0 million passengers and 460,000 coach departures
and arrivals serving the United Kingdom and matntand continental Europe This compared to 2013/14 circa 140
million passengers and 480,000 coach departures and arrivals

Further improvements have been made to the facilities within the station, tncluding improvements to the ticket hall
and the arrivals terminal

Further works are planned for 2015/16 to improve the station infrastructure These include a scheme of major
works to repair the Grade !l listed canopy over the East Terminal, significant repairs to the concrete coach deck and
to the atr handling units throughout the station complex

The Company continued to perform well in customer satisfaction surveys The commutment to providing a high
standard of customer service continued to be reflected in very good scores for staff performance and attitude

London River Services

During the year, a total of 8 28 million passengers used London River Services’ pier facilibes and non-TfL licensed
nver tour and river bus services These numbers reflect strong underlying growth in passenger demand
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Strategic Report (continued)

Surface Transport {continued)
London River Services (continued)

The Woolwich Ferry carmied 0 91 milbion vehicles {I @3 rmillion in 2013/14) and | 75 millon passengers inclusive of
vehicle drivers {1 95 milbon in 2013/14) Briggs Manne continued the implementation of the TfL funded programme
of infrastructure investments to extend the operating life of the ferry to at least 2024 Whilst every effort was made
to mirimise disruption to customers, ferry performance was affected by traffic restrictions resulting from these
works throughout the year This 1s reflected in the reduced vehicle and passenger numbers compared with the
previous year

During the year, progress was made on the objectives of the River Action Plan, which was launched in February 2013
with a number of specific measures to be taken by Transport for London and other stakeholders to help boost the
number of river trps in line with achieving the Mayor's target of |2 million passenger journeys a year by 2020

Total river passenger journeys in 2014/15 were 10 02 million (8 41 milbon in 2043/14)
Other activities
The Group's other activities include

*+  The Crossral project to construct a ral tunnel under central London in order to provide a new passenger
service tinking Maidenhead and Heathrow in the west to Shenfield and Abbey Wood in the east, covering Canary
Wharf and Stratford,

*  London’s Transport Museum which provides education and entertainment on the history of transportation in
Londen

Crossrail

During the year, £1,526m was spent on the Crossrail project

By the end of the year, the Project was broadly 65% complete Six of the eight Tunnel Boring Machines {'TBMs’) had
reached their destinations and cumulatively completed 42km of tunnelling  In addition, almost |3km of Sprayed
Concrete Lining Works ('SCL’} have been completed, creating station platform tunnels, passenger walkways and
ventilation tunnels at Whitechapel, Liverpool Street, Bond Street and Tottenham Court Road

Crassrail 1s now nearing the end of tunnelling activity (due to complete in June 201 5) and the contracts relating to
the railway systems and stations fit-out are now the focus of its project team

London Transport Museum

London Transport Museum s a chantable business that explores and interprets the close relationship between the
capital and its transport heritage
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Strategic Report (continued)

Treasury activities

During the year, through a subsidiary, Transport for London Finance Limited (*TfLFL"), had four forward starting
Interest rate swaps, with a combined nominal value of £200m, came into effect to hedge the interest on £200m of
floating rate borrowings lent by the Company's parent, Transport for London As at 31 March 2015, therefore, the
Interest on a cumulative total of £1,997 8m of borrowings 1n 1ssue had been hedged through a combination of gilt
locks and interest rate swaps

The fair value at the year end of the cutstanding interest rate denvatives taken out to hedge the interest rate on
borrowings was a net liability of £80 4m Further cumulative cash payments of £118 2m made on settlement of gilt
locks tn prior years and which were deferred within equity and are being released to the Income Statement as an
interest rate hedge over the term of borrowings 1ssued by Transport for London Hedging in the Group Is achieved
through the drawdown of intercompany loans by TfLFL from Transport for London and the onward lending of the
monies to London Underground Limited, a fellow subsidiary undertaking of the Transport Trading Limited Group.

The Group also holds an amortising interest rate swap in order to fix the floating interest rate nisk on operating lease
payments for rolling stock under a lease taken out by RfL  The fair value of the denivative at 31 March 2015 was a
Lability of £20 9m {2014 £4 3m)

Durning the year, the Group entered into a forward foreign exchange contract programme to hedge euro payments
related to the purchase of tram roling stock The aggregate amount of fair value losses recognised in other
comprehensive income and deferred in equity at 31 March 2015 in respect of these forward foreign currency
contracts was £nil (2014 £0 3m)

For the first tme the Group also entered into a number of foreign exchange swaps and forwards to hedge the
currency risk on forergn currency investments entered into by TfL At 3| March 2015 the Group held forward foreign
exchange contracts to sell euros to a value of £594 2m {2014 £nil] Although fully effective as hedges at the TfL
Group level, as the hedged investments are in a different legal entity to the derivatives, these contracts were not in
formally designated hedging relationships for accounting purposes Hedge accounting has not therefore been
applied A fair value gain on these contracts totalling £21 3m (2014 £nil} has been recognised directly in the Income
Statement within financial Income.

Risk management

The Group has a nsk management process and arrangements that enable it systematically to identify, assess,
manage and monitor business nsks The nsk management process aims to complement and support the underlying
mainstream management of the organisation. |

The nsk management framework provides a consistent platform to compare and contrast risks from differing sources
and types of nisks Impact i1s assessed In financial and non-financial terms (e g time delay, customer service and
reputation impacts) Each nsk is allocated a nsk owner who 1s responsible for the correct interpretation, mitigation
and reporting of the nsk

The companies within the Group hold regular Risk Management Meetings The remit of these meetings 1s to oversee
the delivery and development of internal control and nsk management processes and culture within the organisation
The meetings review strategic level nisks and other internal control reports

Approved by the Board on 29 June 2015 and signed on behalf of the Board by
/

FU v
arter

Director
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

In Respect of the Directors’ Report, the Strategic Report and the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for prepanng the Directors' report, the Strategic report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law they have
elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the EU {*Adopted IFRSs”) and applicable law

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a
true and fair view of the state of affarrs of the Group and Company and of the profit or loss of the Group for that
penod In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to

«  select surtable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
*  make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,
»  state whether they have been prepared in accordance with Adopted IFRSs, and

»  prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless 1t 1s inappropnate to presume that the
Group or Company will continue 1n business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Group and Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Group and Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006
They have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the
Group and Company and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the members of Transport Trading Limited

We have audited the financial statements of Transport Trading Limited for the year ended 31 March 2015 set out on
pages 13 to 87 The financial reporting framework that has been appled in their preparation 1s applicable law and
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the EU, and, as regards the parent company
financial statements, as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006

This report 1s made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company's
members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set cut on page | 0, the directors are responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Qur
responsibility 1s to audit, and express an opinion on, the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing
Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements 1s prowided on the Financial Reporting Council website

at www,frc org.uk/auditscopeukpnvate

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinien the financial statements

* give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the parent Company’s affairs as at 31 March 2015 and of
the Group's loss for the year then ended,

* the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFR3s as adopted by the EU,

* the parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
EU and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006, and

+ the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006
Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opirion the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the members of Transport Trading Limited (continued)

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report n respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report
to you If, in our opimon

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit have
not been received from branches not visited by us, or

» the parent Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns, or
» certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

= we have not received all the information and explanations we require for cur audit

1 Bee

Robert Brent (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

I 5 Canada Square

London

El45GL

g July 2015
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Group Income Statement

Year ended 3/ March

Note
Revenue !
Net operating costs
Operating loss 2
Grant income 3
Other gains and losses 4
Total profit from operations
Financial income 7
Financial expenses 8
Loss before taxation
Income tax charge 9
Loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company
Group Statement of Comprehensive Income
Year ended 31 March

Note
Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income and expenditure:
Items that will not subsequently be reclassified to profit or loss
Actuanal gain on defined benefit pension schemes 28

ftems that may be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss
Movement in the fair value of derivative financial instruments
Derwvative farr value loss recycled to income and expenditure

Revaluation of property, plant and equipment I

Total comprehensive income and expenditure for the year attributable to owners
of the Company

2015 2014
£m Em
4,656.3 4,439 3
(5,398.8) {52159
{742.5) {776 6}
786.1 777.2
199.0 163 4
242.6 (640
21.7 237
(284.3) {(301.2}
(20.0) {113 5)
- o1
(20.0) (113 6)
2015 2014
£m Em
(20.0) {1136}
7.2 253
7.2 253%
(33.5) 48 O
7.2 66
99.2 48 6
72.9 103 2
60 1 149

Transport Trading Limited Annual Repert and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015 13




Group Statement of Financial Position

Non-current assets

Intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment
Investment property

Trade and other receivables

Current assets

Inventories

Assets classified as held for sale
Trade and other receivables
Dervative financlal instruments
Cash and cash equivalents

Current labilities

Trade and other payables
Current tax Liabilities

Finance lease liabilities
Dervative financial instruments

Provisions

Non-current liablilities

Trade and other payables
Borrowlngs

Finance lease liabitities
Derivative financial Instruments
Prowisions

Deferred grant

Retirement benefit obligation

Net assets

Equity

Called up share capital
Revaluation reserve
Hedging reserve
Merger reserve

Retained reserves

Total equity attributable to owners of the Company

The notes on pages 21 to 87 form part of these financial statements

THese financial statements ware approved by the Board on 29 June 2015 and signed on its behalf by
g

P. Hendy
Director
Company Registration Number 3914810

14
15

22
17

20
22
23

29

31 March 31 March
2015 2014
£m £m
83.1 89
28,262.9 25,7843
421.5 576 1
861.8 488.3
29,629.3 26,935.6
52.2 42 6
375.7 -
529.9 6140
22.6 -
33.0 863
i,013.4 743 4
{1,774.5) {1,789 7}
- fon
{(715.7 {67 9}
{1.3) {0 3}
(102.2) 812}
{1,953.7) {1,939 2i
(90 7) {59 4
(8,098.8) (7,449 6}
{494.8) (570 6)
(101.3) 67 5)
{2.6) (24 1)
(13,022.6) {12,234 7)
(32.0) {47 8)
(21,842.8) {20,453 7}
6,846 2 5,286 |
5,430.0 3,930 0
212.9 171
(201.0) (174 7
466.1 466 |
938.2 947.6
6,846.2 5,286 1
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Group Statement of Changes in Equity

Revaluation Hedging Merger  Retained
Share capital reserve reserve reserve reserves Total
£m £m £m Em Em £m

At | April 2013 2,3300 707 (229 3) 466 | 1,033 7 36712
Loss for the year - - - - {1136} (1t3 6)
Actuarial gain on defined benefit pension
scheme - - - - 253 253
Movement in the fair value of denvative
financial instruments - - 480 - - 480
Movement in the farr value of dernvative
financial instruments reclassified to profit
or loss - - 66 - - 66
Net surplus on revaluation of property,
plant and equipment - 48 &6 - - - 48 6
Total comprehensive incomef{expense) - 48 6 546 - (88 3) 14.9
Issue of share capital 1,600 0 - - - - 1,600 0
Release of revaluation reserve in respect
of non-historic cost depreciation - (22) - - 22 -
Balance at 31 March 2014 3,9300 1171t {174 7) 466 | 947 6 5,286 1
Loss for the year - - - - (20 0) (20.0]
Actuanal loss on defined benefit pension
scheme - - - - 712 7.2
Movement :n the fair value of denvative
financial instruments - - (33 5) - - (33.5)
Movement in the fair value of dervative
financial instruments reclassified to profit
or loss - - 72 - - 7.2
Net surplus on revaluation of property,
plant and equipment - 99 2 - - - 99.2
Total comprehensive income/(expense) - 992 (26 3) - {12 8) 60.1(
Issue of share capital 1,500 0 - - - - 1,500.0
Release of revaluation reserve in respect
of non-historic cost depreciation - (3 4) - - 34 -
Balance at 31 March 2015 5,430.0 2129 {201.0) 466.1 938.2 6,846.2

Transport Trading Limnited Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015 15




Group Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended 31 March

Cash flows from operating activities

Loss for the year

Adjustments for

Depreciation

Amortisation of intangible assets

Change 1n value of investment property

(Gain) / Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Loss / (Gain) on sale of investment property

Financial income

Financial expense

Amortisation of deferred capital grant to meet the depreciation charge
Reversal of defined benefit pension service costs
Reversal of taxation charge

Cash flow from operating activities before movements tn working capital
Increase in inventories

Decrease / (increase) in trade and other receivables
Decrease in trade and other payables

{Decrease) / increase In provisions

Net cash generated from operations

Employer contnbutions to pension scheme

Taxation pasd

Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest received

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of tnvestment properties
Repayment of loans to ultmate parent

Acquisition of intangible assets

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

intenm funding to third parties in relation to Crossrail
Capital grants received

Net cash utilised by investing activities

Note

28

2015 2014
£m £m
{20.0) (113 6)
826.3 8238
24.7 189
(198.1) (174 1)
(1.0} 240
0.1 (133
21.7) (z37)
284.3 301 2
{598.2) {575 1
12,9 128

- 0l
309.3 2810
{9.6) (4 4)
76.4 (38 7)
(42.3) (158 7)
(0.5) 883
333.3 167 5
(22.9) {22 7]
(0.1 on
310.3 144 7
0.4 238
6.2 21
18.1 223

- 720
(14.0) (30 8)
(3,206.2) (2,964 5)
(381.9) (199 9)
1,406.8 1,469 8
(2,170.6) (1,605 2)
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Group Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

Year ended 31 March

Cash flows from financing activities

Settlement of dernvatives

Issue of share caprtal

Increase in loans from uitimate parent

Net repayment of external borrowings

Caprtal element of finance leases repaid

Interest paid

Premiums on settlement of loans and finance lease Liabilities

Net cash flow generated from financing activities

Net cash movement in the year
Net cash and cash equivalents at the start of the year

Net cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

2015 2014
£m £fm
- {0 5}
1,500.0 1,600 0
650.0 336 8
{0.8) (72 0)
{68.0) {60.3)
(274.7) 263 1)
- (23 2)
1,806.5 1,517 7
{53.8) 572
86.8 296
331.0 86 8
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Company Statement of Financial Position

31 March 3t March
2015 2014
Note £m Em
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 10 56.8 6112
Property, plant and equipment 11 191.6 200 8
Investment property 12 1.8 16
Investment in subsidiary undertakings 13 5,965.0 4,465 0
Trade and other receivables 16 0.5 33
6.215.7 47319
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 16 350.1 3235
Cash and cash equivalents 17 1.9 107
352.0 3342
Current labilities
Trade and other payables 18 (568.9} (569 7)
Provisions 23 {0.9) 01}
(569.8) (569 8)
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables t8 {15.9) {16 1)
Borrowings 19 {30.4) (30 4)
Deferred grant 26 {116.6) (138 &)
(162.9) (185 1)
Net assets 5,835.0 4,311 2
Reserves
Share capital 29 5,430.0 39300
Revaluation reserve 46.8 230
Retained reserves 3158.2 3582
Total equity attributable to owners of the Company 5,835.0 43112

TTL Company 1s exempt under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 from producing an income statement

The notes on pages 21! to 87 form part of these financial statements

These financial statements were approved by the Board on 29 June 2015 and signed on its behalf by

(/(/L(/—\_/\/\

Director

Company Registration Number 3914810

Transport Trading Limited Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015 I8




Company Statement of Changes in Equity

At | Apnl 2013

Profit for the year

Net surplus on revatuation of property, plant and equipment
Total comprehensive income

{ssue of share capital

Release of revaluation reserve in respect of non-historic cost
deprectation

Balance at 31 March 2014

Profit for the year

Net surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment
Total comprehensive income/{expense)}

Issue of share capital

Release of revaluation reserve 1n respect of non-historic cost
depreciation

Balance at 31 March 2015

Revaluation  Retained

Share capital reserve reserves Total
Em fm £m £m
2,330.0 126 3503 26929
- - 63 63

- 120 - 12.0

- 120 63 i83

1,600 0 - - 1,6000
- (1 6) | 6 -
39300 230 358 2 43112
- - (23) (2.3)

- 26| - 26.1

- 261 {2 3) 23.8

1,500 0 - - 1,500.0
- {23) 23 -
5,430.0 46.8 358.2 5.835.0
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Company Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended 31 March

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit for the year

Ad)ustments for

Depreciation

Amortisation of intangible assets

Change (n value of investment property

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Financial income

Financial expense

Note

Amortisation of deferred capital grant to meet the depreciation charge 26

Cash flow from operating activities before movements in working capitat

Increase in trade and other recevables
Increase in trade and other payables

Increase / (Decrease) sn provisions

Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest received

Proceeds from disposal of investment properties
Acquisition of intangible assets

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Acquisition of investment properties
Subscription for new shares in subsidiary

Caprtal grants received

Net cash utilised by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Issue of share caprtal

Interest pad

Net cash flow generated from financing activities

Net cash movement in the year

Net cash and cash eguivalents at the start of the year

Net cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

2015 2014
£m £m
(2.3) 63
37.3 39
19.1 98
©.2) -
- 02
(0.3 {05
0.1 01
(37.3) {2t 9
6.4 259
{(23.7) {36 6)
2.8 292
0.8 (42)
(3.7 143
0.3 04
- 2 8)
{7.7) (209)
(12.9) (329
- {1t 6)
{1,500.0) {1,600 0)
(5.3 532
{1,505.0) (1,604 6)
1,500.0 1,6000
0.1} {o1)
1,499.9 1,599 9
(8.8) 96
10.7 ]
1.9 107
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Accounting Policies '

a) Reporting entity

Transport Trading Limited {"TTL" or the “Company”] 1s a company domiciled 0 the United Kingdom The
Company's registration number 1s 3914810 and its registered office 1s Windsor House, 42-50 Victoria Street,
London, SWIH OTL

The consolidated financial statements as at 31 March 2015 include the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidianes [together referred to as the "Group”)
b} Statement of accounting policies

This section explains the Company's main accounting policies, which, unless otherwise stated, have been applied to
all perrods presented in these financial statements

c) Basis of preparatfon

Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Adopted IFRSs
Basis of measurement

The accounts are made up to 31 March and have been prepared under the accruals concept and n accordance with
the historical cost accounting convention, modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current asset and
financial instruments

Whete items are sufficiently significant by virtue of their size or nature, they are disclosed separately in the financial
statements in order to aid the reader's understanding of the Group and Company’s financial performance

d) Uses of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements n conformity with Adopted IFRS requires the use of certain cntical
accounting estmates [t also requires management to exercise judgement in applying the Group and Company’s
accounting policies The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions or
estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed below

Post-retirement benefits

The pension costs and defined benefit plan obligations of the Group’s defined benefit plans are calculated on the
basis of a range of assumptions, including the discount rate, inflation rate, salary growth and mortality Differences
ansing as a result of actual expenence differing from the assumptions, or future changes in the assumptions will be
reflected In subsequent periods A small change in assumptions can have a significant impact on the valuation of the
defined benefit obligation

Leases

In assessing whether a lease 1s an operating lease or a finance lease, jJudgement needs to be exercised in determining
whether or not substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership of the leased asset are held by the Company
Given that finance leases are recognised as liabilities, and operating leases are not, this can have a significant effect
on the reported financial position of the Group or Company
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Accounting Policies (continued)

d) Uses of estimates and Judgements {continued)
Determining whether an arrangement contalns a lease

When determining whether an arrangement contains a lease, as required by IFRIC 4, judgement needs to be exercised
in determining whether the arrangement conveys the night to use an asset Given that this could result in additional
finance leases being recogmsed on the Statement of Financial Position this can have a significant effect on the
reported financial position of the Group or Company

Classification of investment properties

IAS 40 Investment properties ("IAS 40"} requires that properties are classified as investment properties where they
are held for the purpose of captal appreciation or to earn rentals The Group owns a number of commercial
properties as part of its infrastructure where part of the property Is leased out to third parties To comply with IAS
40, judgement needs to be exercised in determining whether these properties should be classified as investment
propertres As investment properties are valued at fair value with movements in the fair value being recorded n the
income statement this could have a significant effect on the financial performance of the Group

Investment property

Investment property, which 1s property held to earn rentals and/or capital appreciation, 1s stated at its fair value as
calculated by external professionally qualified surveyors in accordance with Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors
{RICS) Guidelines Gains and losses from changes in the fair value of i1nvestment property are included in the income
statement for the period in which they anse

Office buildings

Office bulldings held within property, plant and equipment are held at fair value as calculated by external
professionally qualified surveyors in accordance with Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) Guidelines
Movements in the fair value of the property are taken to the revaluation reserve

Provisions

Estimation techniques are employed in the calculation of the best estimate of the amount required to settle
obligations, including determining how likely it 1s that expendrture will be required by the Group or Company This
can be very complex, especially when there 1s a wide range of possible outcomes

Useful economic life of property, plant and equipment

When determining the useful economic life of property, plant and equipment, judgement needs to be exercised
estimating the length of times the assets will be operational

Derlvative financial instruments

The Group uses denvative financial instruments to manage certain exposures to fluctuations in foreign currency
exchange rates and interest rates In making its assessment and judgements, the Group assesses the effectiveness of
the derivatives and changes in their far values Note 22 and the accounting policies note on financial instruments
provide detalled information about the key assumptions used in the determination of the fair value of financial
instruments, as well as a sensitrvity analysis for these assumptions The directors believe that the chosen valuation
techniques and assumptions used are appropnate in determining the fair value of financial instruments
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Accounting Policies (continued)

e} New standards and interpretations adopted for the first time In these Financial Statements

Standards and interpretations issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB") are only applicable if

endorsed by the EU The following new amendments have been applied for the first time in these Financial
Statements

‘Amendments to iIFRS |0, IFRS 12 and IAS 27 Investment Entities' The amendments to IFRS 10 define an
investment entity and introduce an exception from the requirement to consolidate subsidianies for an
investment entity Consequential amendments to IFRS |2 and IAS 27 have been made to introduce new
disclosure requirements for investment entities,

'"Amendments to IAS 32 - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities' The amendments clanfy the
requirements relating to the offset of financial assets and financial liabilities. Specifically, the amendments
clanfy the meaning of 'currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off' and 'simultaneous realisation and
settlement’,

‘Amendments to IAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets' These amendments
remove the requirement to disclose the recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit {CGU) to which
goodwill or other intangible assets with indefinite useful ives had been allocated when there has been no
impairment or reversal of impairment of the related CGU Furthermore, the amendments introduce
additional disclosure requirements applicable to when the recoverable amount of an asset or a CGU s
measured at fair value less costs of disposal These new disclosures include the fair value hierarchy, key
assumptions, and valuation techniques used which are in ltne with the disclosure required by IFRS 13 Farr
Value Measurements,

‘Amendments to 1AS 39 Novation of Denvatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting' These
amendments provide rebef from the requirement to discontinue hedge accounting when a dervative
designated as a hedging mstrument 1s novated under certain circumstances The amendments clanfy that
any change to the fair value of the derivative designated as a hedging instrument ansing from the novation
should be included in the assessment and measurement of hedge effectiveness, and

'IFRIC 21 Levies’ This interpretation addresses the 1ssue of when to recognise a liability to pay a levy IFRIC
21 defines a levy, and specifies that the obligating event that gives nse to the liability 1s the activity that
triggers the payment of the levy, as identified by legislation

The application of these and any other standards, amendments or interpretations i1ssued by the IASB and applicable
for the first time to these Financial Statements has not had a matenal impact on the accounts

f) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

The following new and revised IFRSs will be applicable 1n future periods, subject to endorsement where applicable

These have been i1ssued, and adopted by the EU, but have not been applied by the Company in these Financial

Statements

‘IFRS 9 Financial Instruments {as revised in 2014)' IFRS 9 (as revised in 2014} will supersede 'IAS 39 Financial
instruments Recognition and Measurement' The new standard contains the requirements for three areas a)
the classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities, b} impairment methodology
and c) general hedge accounting With respect to classification and measurement, all recognised financial
assets that are currently within the scope of 1AS 39 will be subsequently measured at either amortised cost
or fair value The standard also contains requirements for the classification and measurement of financial
liabilities and derecognition requirements With respect to imparment methodology, the revised model
reflects expected credit losses as opposed to the incurred credit losses recogrused under IAS 39 And with
regards to hedge accounting IFRS 9 {as rewised n 2014) introduces greater flexibility to the types of
transactions eligible, specifically broademing the types of instruments that qualify as hedging instruments
The revised standard 1s mandatory for years beginning on or after | January 2018;
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Accounting Policies {continued)

‘IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers' (mandatory for years beginning on or after | January
2017} IFRS |5 establishes a single comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising
from contracts with customers It will supersede 1AS 18 Revenue, IAS |1 Construction Contracts, IFRIC 13
Customer Loyalty Programmes, IFRIC 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate, IFRIC |8
Transfers of Assets from Customers and SIC 31 Revenue-Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services
The core prnnciple of the new standard 1s that an entity should recogrise revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services,

‘Amendments to IFRS |1 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations' (mandatory for years
commencing on or after | January 2016} These amendments provide guidance on how to account for the
acquisition of an interest in a joint operation in which the activities constitutes a business,

'Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 Clanfication of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation'’
(mandatory for years commencing on or after | January 2016) The amendments prohibit entities from using
a revenue-based depreciation method for items of property, plant and equipment, whilst the amendments
to IAS 38 introduce a rebuttable presumption that revenue is not an appropriate basis for amortisation of an
intangible asset,

‘Amendments to IAS |9 Defined Benefit Plans Employee Contnbutions' (mandateory for years commencing
on or after | July 2014} The amendments to 1AS 19 clanfy how an entity should account for contributions
made by employees or third parties that are linked to services to defined benefit plans For contributions
that are independent of the number of years of service, the entity may either recogntse the contributions as
a reduction of the service cost in the penod in which the related service i1s rendered, or attnbute them to
the employees' periods of service, whereas for contributions that are dependent on the number of years of
service, the entity I1s required to attnbute them to the employees’ periods of service,

'‘Annual improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle' [mandatory for years commencing on or after | July
2014) The Annual Improvements include amendments to a number of IFRSs including, IFRS 2 Share-based
Payment, IFRS 3 Business Combinations, IFRS 8 Operating Segments, IFRS 13 Farr Value Measurement, IAS
16 Property, Plant and Equipment, A5 38 Intangible Assets and IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures,

‘Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle' (mandatory for years commencing on or after | July
2014) These Annual Improvements include amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations in relation to
scope exceptions for joint ventures, IFRS |3 Fair Value Measurement (portfolio exception for fair value
measurement) and IAS 40 Investment Property [clanfying the interrelationship between IFRS 3 and 1AS 40
when classifying property as an investment or owner-occupied property),

'IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts’ [mandatory for years commencing on or after | January 2016) IFRS
| 4 specifies the accounting for regulatory deferral account balances that anse from rate-regulated activities,
and 1s available only to first-time adopters of IFRS who recognised regulatory deferral account balances
under their previous GAAP This does not apply to Tfl, and

‘Amendments to IAS |6 and IAS 41 Agniculture Bearer Plans' [mandatory for years commencing on or after
| January 2016}

Other than where indicated above, the Company does not consider that these or any other standards, amendments
or interpretations issued by the IASB, but not yet applicable, will have a significant impact on the Financial

Statements

g} Going concern

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis

The Group 15 dependent on funds provided to it by Transport for London, its ultimate parent, in order to ensure
working capital requirements are satisfied Transport for London has indicated that for at least |2 months from the

date of approval of these Financial Statements, it will continue to make such funds available to the Group
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Accounting Policies (continued)

The directors consider that this should enable the Group to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future by meeting sts liabilities as they fall due for payment As with any Group placing reliance on other entities for
financizl support, the directors acknowledge that there can be no certainty that this support will continue, although,
at the date of approval of these Financial Statements, they have no reason to believe that it will not do so Based on
this undertaking, the directors believe that it remains appropriate to prepare the Financial Statements on a going
concern basis

h} Revenue

Revenue 1s generated from the prowision of travel, the letting of commercial advertising space and the rental of
commercial properties

Revenue 1s measured after the deduction of value added tax (where applicable}
Fare revenue

Revenue from annual or periodic tickets and travel cards 1s recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
on a straight line basis over the period of validity of the ticket or travel card Revenue received in advance and not
recognised In the Statement of Comprehensive Income 1s recorded in the Statement of Financial Position and held
within current liabilittes receipts in advance for travel cards, bus passes and Oyster cards Oyster pay as you go
revenue s recognised on usage and one day travel cards and single tickets are recognised on the day of puschase

Revenue in respect of free and reduced fare travel for the elderly and disabled

Revenue from the London Borough Council and county Authonties in respect of free and reduced fare travel for the
elderly and disabled 1s recognised as revenue on a straight line basis over the financial year to which the settlement
relates

Comrmercial advertising

Commercial advertising revenue 1s recognised on an accruals basis in accordance with the detail of the relevant
agreements

Rental Income
Rental income 1s recognised on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease
1) Grants and other funding

Grants and other contnibutions received towards the cost of capital expenditure are recorded as deferred income on
the Statement of Financial Position and released to the Income Statement over the estimated useful economic life of
the asset to which the grant relates

Revenue grants received for the funding of operations are credited to the Income Statement on a systematic basis to
match costs
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Accounting Policies (continued)

i) Employee benefits
Defined contribution scheme

A defined contnbution plan 1s a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts Obligations for contributions
to defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an employee benefit expense In the Income Statement in
the periods dunng which services are rendered by employees

Defined benefit plans

The defined benefit plans, of which the majonty of staff are members, prowide benefits based on final pensionable
pay The assets of schemes are held separately from those of the Group

On retirement, members of the schemes are paid their pensions from a fund which 1s kept separate from the Group
The Group makes cash contributions to that fund in advance of members’ retirement

Pension scheme assets are measured using current market bid values Pension scheme liabilities are measured using
a projected unit credit method and discounted at the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of
equivalent term and currency to the Liability

The difference between the value of the pension scheme assets and pension scheme habilities 1s a surplus or a
deficit A pension scheme surplus 1s recognised to the extent that it 1s recoverable and a pension scheme deficit 1s
recognised in full The movement i the scheme surplus/deficit 1s split between operating charges, finance items
and, in the statement of total comprehensive iIncome, actuanal gains and losses Generally, amounts are charged to
operating expenditure on the basis of the current service cost of the present employees that are members of the
Schemes

Unfunded pension schemes

Until 31 March 2013 ex gratia payments were made to certain employees on retirement in respect of service prior to
the establishment of pension funds for those employees Suppiementary payments were also made to the pensions
of certain employees who retired prior to the index bnking of pensions The Group augmented the pensions of
certain employees who retire early under voluntary severance arrangements These unfunded pension liabilities were
provided for in the Statement of Financiat Position On 31 March 2013, the tiabiity in respect of these obligations
was transferred to TfL

Defined benefit plans — multi-employer exemption

For certain defined benefit schemes 1t 1s not posstble for the Company or Group to identfy its share of the
underlying assets and babilittes of the scheme on a consistent and reasonable basis This is because the plan
exposes the participating entities to actuanal risks associated with the current and former employees of other
entities, with the result that there is no consistent and reliable basis for allocating the obligation, plan assets and
cost to individuat entities participating in the plan  For this reason, as permitted by the multi-employer exemptien in
1AS 19 {revised 201 |) Employee benefits {*IAS | 9R"}, the scheme 1s accounted for as a defined contribution scheme
and contnbutions are charged to the Income Statement as incurred

Other employee benefits

Other short and long term employee benefits, including holiday pay and long service leave, are measured on an
undiscounted basis and are recognised as an expense over the period in which they accrue
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Accounting Policies (continued)

k} Leases (the Group as lessee)
Leased assets

Leases under which the Group assumes substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance
leases. Upon tnitial recognition the leased asset 1s measured at an amount equal to the lower of its fair value and the
present value of the minimum lease payments Subsequent to inttial recogmtion, the asset 1s accounted for In
accordance with the accounting policy applicable to that asset.

Other leases are operating leases and the leased assets are not recognised in the Group's Statement of Financial
Position

Lease payments

Payments made under operating leases are recognsed in the Income Statement on a straight-tine basis over the term
of the lease Lease incentives recelved are recognised as an integral part of the total lease expense, over the term of
the lease

Mimimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the finance expense and the
reduction of the cutstanding liability The finance expense 1s allocated to each penod during the lease term so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the Lability

Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease

At inception of an arrangement, the Group determines whether such an arrangement 1s or contains a lease A
specific asset 15 the subject of a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement 1s dependent on the use of that specified
asset An arrangement conveys the nght to use the asset If the arrangement conveys to the Group the right to
control the use of the underlytng asset.

At inception or upon reassessment of the arrangement, the Group separates payments and other consideration
required by such an arrangement into those for the lease and those for other elements on the basis of therr relative
fair values If the Group concludes for a finance lease that it 1s impracticable to separate the payments reliably, an
asset and a Labibty are recogmsed at an amount equal to the fair value of the underlying asset Subsequently the
liability 1s reduced as payments are made and an 1mputed finance charge on the liability I1s recognised using the
Group's incremental borrowing rate

The Group has applied the transitional prowvisions i IFRIC 4 as permitted under IFRS | First time adoption of
International Financial Reporting Standards {"IFRS 1") to determine whether existing arrangements contain a lease at
the date of transition to Adopted {FRSs based ‘on the facts and circumstances existing at that date

1) Leases {the Group as lessor)

Rental income from operating leases and inihial direct costs are recognised on a straight line basis over the term of
the relevant lease
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Accounting Policies (continued)

m) Financial income and expenses

Financing and investment income consists of interest income on funds invested and expected return on pension
assets Interest mncome 1s recognised as it accrues in the Income Statement, using the effective interest rate method

Financing costs compnise the interest expense on borrowings and finance lease Liabilities accrued using the effective
interest rate method, and the expected cost of pension scheme liabilities Borrowing costs directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets [those necessarily taking a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use} are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are ready for
ther intended use In accordance with IFRS | and IAS 23 Borrowing costs ["lAS 23", the Group has taken the option
not to capitalise borrowing costs on assets prior to the date of transition to IFRS

Borrowing costs that are not directly attributable to the acquisition, constructicn or production of a qualifying asset
are recognised in the Income Statement using the effective interest rate method

n) [ncome tax

Income tax expense compnses current and deferred tax Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in the Income
Statement except to the extent that they relate to a business combination, or items recognised directly in equity or
in other comprehensive income

Current tax 15 the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years

Deferred tax 1s recogmsed In respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes

Deferred tax 15 not recognised for the following temporary differences the initial recognition of assets or liabilities 1n
a transaction that i1s not a business combination and that affects nerther accounting nor taxable profit or toss, and
differences relating to investments in subsidianes and jointly controlled entities to the extent that it 1s probable that
they will not reverse in the foreseeable future In addition, deferred tax 1s not recognised for taxable temporary
differences ansing on the imtial recognition of goodwill

Deferred tax 1s measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they
reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date

Deferred tax assets and habilities are disclosed net to the extent that they relate to taxes levied by the same tax
authonty and the Group has the nght of set off

A deferred tax asset I1s recogrised for unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible temporary differences, to the
extent that it 1s probable that future taxable profits will be avallable aganst which they can be utiised Deferred tax
assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it 1s no longer probable that the related
tax benefit will be realised
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Accounting Policies (continued)

o} Foreign currencies

Transactions in currencies other than sterling are recognised at the rates of exchange prevalling at the date of the
transaction At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denomunated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at that date Non-monetary items carned at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevaling at the date when the fair value was determined Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of histoncal cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the penod i which they anse except for
exchange differences on transactions entered into 1n order to hedge certain foreign currency risks

pl Intangible assets
Goodwill

Where the cost of a business combination exceeds the farr values attributable to the net assets acquired, the
resulting goodwill 1s capitalised and tested for impairment at each Statement of Financial Position date Goodwill 1s
allocated to iIncome-generating units for the purpose of imparrment testing

Other intangible assets

Software costs are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses Assets
under construction are measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation 1s charged to the Income Statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated usefut lives of intangible
assets, from the date that they are available for use, unless such lives are indefinite

The useful lives and amortisation methods for software costs are as follows.
Software costs Straight-line 3.5 years

q} Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement

Infrastructure consists of tunnels, viaducts, bridges, stations, track, signalling, bus stations and stands, properties
attached to infrastructure and surplus properties held to faciitate construction of infrastructure

Infrastructure, plant and equipment and roling stock are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses

Assets in the course of construction are measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses

The cost of certain items of property, plant and eguipment was determined by reference to a previous GAAP
valuatron The Group elected to apply the optional exemption allowed under IFRS | to use this previous valuation as
deemed cost at | April 2009, the date of transition

Office property consists of business properties, used by the Group for its own purposes. which are not imited in
their future use by operational constraints or requirements and which are not integral to the infrastructure {e g
offices)

These properties are valued at fair value (open market value on an existing use basis) by external professionally
qualified surveyors in accordance with Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) Guidelines Valuations are
performed on a rolling basis, with approximately 75 per cent of the portfolio by value being valued each year
Movements 1n the fair value of the property are taken to the revaluation reserve, with the exception of permanent
dimmutions in value which are recognised in the Income Statement

Transport Trading Limited Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015 29




Accounting Policies (continued)

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attnbutable to the acquisition of the asset The cost of self-constructed
assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour, borrowing costs on qualifying assets for which the
commencement date for capitalisation 1s on or after | Apnl 2009, and any other costs directly attnbutable to
bringing the assets to a working condition for their intended use Where there 1s a legat obligation to remove the
asset and/or restore the site on which it Is located at the end of its useful economic life, the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restonng the site on which they are located are also included in the cost of that asset

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as
separate items {major components) of property, plant and equipment

Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing a part of an item of property, plant and equipment i1s recognised in the carrying amount of the
item If it 1s probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Group, and its cost
can be measured reliably The carrying amount of the replaced part 15 derecognised The costs of the day-to-day
servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the Income Statement as incurred

Depreciation

Depreciation 1s calculated on the depreciable amount, which i1s the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for
cost, less its residual value

Depreciation 1s recognised in the Income Statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each
part of an item of property, plant and equipment, since this most closely reflects the expected pattern of
consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset

Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives unless 1t s reasonably certain
that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative penods are as follows

Tunnels and embankments up to 100 years
Bridges and viaducts up to 100 years
Track up to 50 years
Signalling 1 5-40 years
Stations up to 50 years
Other property 20-50 years
Rolling stock 30-50 years
Lifts and escalators 25-40 years
Plant and equipment 3-40 years
Computer equipment 3 years

Assets under construction and freehold land are not depreciated

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted f
appropnate
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Accounting Policies (continued)

Gains and losses on disposal

Garns and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are deterrined by comparing the proceeds
of disposal with the carrying amount, and are recogrised net within other gains and losses in the Income Statement

r) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attnbutable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are added to
the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are ready for their intended use Qualifying assets are defined
as an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale A substantiat
penod of time has been interpreted as being one year.

All other borrowing costs are recogrised in the Income Statement in the penod in which they are incurred
s) Private Finance Initiative {“PF1"} arrangements

The Group has entered into PFl arrangements with the private sector in relation to the construction, maintenance

and operation of parts of London Underground and Docklands Light Rallway infrastructure In the absence of

alternative gurdance, these arrangements are treated as service concession arrangements following the guidance,

from a lessor's point of view, contained in IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements (“IFRIC |2”), an interpretation !
under Adopted IFRS

IFRIC 12 requires the Group to account for infrastructure PFl schemes where it controls the use of the infrastructure
and the residual interest in the infrastructure at the end of the arrangement The Group therefore recogmses PFI
assets as items of property, plant and equipment together with a Liability to pay for them The fair values of services
received under the contract are recorded as operating expenses

The annual unitary payment s separated into the following component parts, using appropriate estimation
techniques where necessary

a) The service charge

b} Repayment of the capital

c) The interest element (using the interest rate implicit in the contract)

Services received

The fair value of services recerved in the year Is recorded in net operating costs
Assets -

Assets are recognised as property, plant and equipment or intangible assets when they come into use The assets
are measured initially at fair value 1n accordance with IAS |7 Leases [“IAS 177}

Where the operator enhances assets already recogrised in the Statement of Financial Position, the fair value of the
ehhancement in the carrying value of the asset s recognised as an asset
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Accounting Policies (continued)

Liabilities

A PFl liability 1s recognised at the same time as the assets are recognised Iti1s measured initially at the same amount
as the fair value of the assets and 1s subsequently measured as a finance lease lability in accordance with I1AS 7.

An annual finance cost 1s calculated by applying the implicit interest rate in the lease to the opening lease liability for
the year, and 1s charged to ‘Financial expenses’ within the Income Statement

The element of the unitary payment that 15 allocated as a finance lease rental 1s applied to meet the annual finance
cost and to repay the lease Liability over the contract term

Life cycle replacement

Components of the asset replaced by the operator dunng the contract {lifecycle replacement’} are capitalised where
they meet the Group critena for capital expenditure They are caprtalised at the time they are provided by the
operator and are measured initially at their fair value

PFl arrangements accounted for as operating leases are not recognised in the Statement of Financial Position and are
dealt with as detailed in note j} above

t} Investment property

Investment property 1s property held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both, but not for
sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the supply of services or for administrative purposes

Investment property 1s measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to imitial recognition,
investment property 1s measured at farr value with any changes therein recogmsed in the Income Statement in the
period 1n which they anse When the use of a property changes such that 1t 1s reclassified as property, plant and
equipment, its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for subsequent accounting Investment
properties held at fair value are not subject to depreciation

Properties are valued by external professionally qualified surveyors in accordance with Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors (RICS) Guidelines Properties with a carrying value in excess of £5,000,000 are valued annually Properties
with a value in excess of £250,000 but less than £5,000,000 are revalued every three years Properties with a vatue in
excess of £100,000 but tess than £250,000 are revalued every five years

An investment property i1s derecogmised upon disposal  Any gain or loss ansing on derecognition of the property is
included in the lncome Statement in the period in which the property 1s derecognised  The gain or loss on disposal
of the property is calculated as the difference between the proceeds on disposal and the carrying amount of the
asset

u} Investment in subsidiaries
The Company's investment in subsidiasies 1s accounted for at cost and 1s recognised net of imparrment losses
v} Investment in associated undertakings

An associate 1s an entity over which the Group has significant influence, but not control The results and assets and
liabilities of associates are incorporated in these consolidated accounts using the equity method of accounting from
the date on which the investee becomes an associate Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised on the Statement of Financial Position at cost, and 1s thereafter adjusted to recognise the Group's share
of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate
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Accounting Policies (continued)

w) Assets classified as Held for Sale

When 1t becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered prnincipally through a sale
transaction rather than through its continuing use, 1t 1s reclassified as an Asset Held for Sale. The asset 1s revalued
immediately before reclassification and then carned at the lower of this amount and fair value less costs to sell
Depreciation 1s not charged on Assets Held for Sale.

x} Inventorfes

Inventonies consist peimarly of fuel, uniforms, and materals required for the operation and maintenance of
infrastructure Equipment and materals held for use in a capital programme are accounted for as stock until they are
1ssued to the project, at which stage they become part of assets under construction

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost comprises direct materials, direct labour
costs and those overheads that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition
Cost 15 calculated using the weighted average method Net realisable value 1s the estimated selling prce in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and seling expenses

y) Impairment

Non-financial assets

mparment occurs when an asset would otherwise be recorded in the Financial Statements at an amount more than
Is recoverable from its use or sale

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amount of those assets that are subject to amortisation to
determine whether there 1s an indication that any of those assets has suffered an impairment loss If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset 1s estimated in order to determine the extent of any
impairment loss

Impairment losses are recognised in the Income Statement
2} Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event, it 1s probable that the
Group will be required to settle that obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation
Provisions are measured at management's best estimate of the consideration required to settle the obligation at the
Staternent of Financial Position date, and are discounted to present value where the effect 1s matenal.

aa) Financial Instruments

Financial assets within the scope of IAS 39 Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement (IAS 39'} are
¢classified as

* financial assets at fair value through the Income Statement,
* loans and receivables, or
* available for sale financial assets

Financial babilittes within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as either financial labilities at fair value through the
Income Statement or financiat liabilities measured at amortised cost
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Accounting Policies (continued)

The Group determines the classification of its financial instruments at intial recogntion and re-evaluates this
designation at each financial year end When financial instruments are recogrised imtially, they are measured at farr
value, being the transaction price plus any directly attnbutable transactional costs The exception to this 1s for
assets and liabilities measured at fair value, where transaction costs are immediately expensed The subsequent
measurement of financial instruments depends on their classification as follows

Loans and receivables

Loans and recewvables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinabte payments that are not quoted on
an active market, do not qualify as trading assets and have not been designated as erther ‘fair value through the
Income Statement’ or avaitable for sale Such assets are carmed at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method If the time value of money Is significant Gains and losses are recognised in the Income Statement when the
loans and receivables are derecogrused or impaired, as well as through the amortisation process

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other recetvables are recognised initially at far value and subsequently at amortised cost For trade
receivables this 1s after an allowance for estimated impairment The allowance 1s based on objective evidence that
the Group will not be able to recover all amounts due, through a review of all accounts and prior experience of
collecting outstanding balances Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance are recognised in the Income

Statement

The fair value of trade and other receivables is estimated as the present value of future cash flows, discounted at the
market rate of interest at the reporting date This fair value 1s determined for disclosure purposes

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents compnse cash balances and call deposits with matunty of less than or equal to three
months

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

All non-denvative financial labilities are classified as financial liabilities measured at amortised cost Non-derivative
financial Labilities are initially recognised on the settlement date at the fair value of the consideration received, less
directly attributable issue costs After inmal recogmition, non-denvative financial babilites are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method Gains and losses are recognised in the Income
Statement when the liabillities are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation process

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fatr value and subsequently at amortised cost using the effective
interest method

Interest bearing loans and borrowings
All loans and borrowings are classified as financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Obligations under finance leases and PFl arrangements

All obligations under finance leases and PFl arrangements are classified as financial labiliies measured at amortised
cost
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Derivative financial instruments

The Group enters into dervative instruments to manage its exposure to ftuctuations in foreign currency exchange
rates and nterest rates The Group does not hold or 1ssue dernvative instruments for speculative purposes The use
of derivatives 1s governed by Transport for London, the Company’'s ultimate parent, through policies that are
approved by the TfL Finance and Policy Committee Denvatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a
denvative contract I1s entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at each reporting date The
resulting gain or loss 1s recognised in the Income Statement immediately unless the derivative 1s designated and
effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in the Income Statement depends on
the nature of the hedge relationship

The Group designates certain derivatives as either hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities or firm
commitments (fair value hedges), hedges of highly probable forecast transactions or hedges of foreign currency nisk
or firm commitments (cashflow hedges)

The farr value of hedging derivatives 1s classified as a non-current asset or a non-current liabiity if the remaining
matunity of the hedge relationship 1s more than 12 months and as a current asset or a current Liability if the remaining
maturnity of the hedge relationship s less than |2 months Denvatives not designated into an effective hedge
relationship are classified as a current asset or a current lability

Hedge accounting

The Group designates certain hedging instruments, which include denwvatives, as either fair value hedges or cash flow
hedges

In order to qualfy for hedge accounting, at inception of the transaction the Group formally designates and
documents the hedging relationship, which includes the Group's nsk management objective and strategy for
undertaking the hedge, identification of the hedging instrument, the hedged item, the nature of the nsk being hedged
and how the Group will assess the hedging instrument's effectiveness  In addition, an instrument 15 only designated
as a hedge when 1t is expected to be highly effective in offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows attrnibutable to
the hedged nisk as designated and documented and where effectiveness is capable of reliable measurement

At the inception of the hedge relationship the entity documents the relationship between the hedging instrument
and hedged item, along with its nsk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge
transactions Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Group decuments whether the
hedging instrument that is used in a hedging relationship 1s highly effective in offsetting changes 'n fair values or cash
flows of the hedged tem

Derwvatives qualify for hedge accounting iIf changes in the farr value or cash flows of the hedging instrument
attributable to the hedged nisk are expected to be highly effective in offsetting the changes in the fair value or cash
flows of the hedged item on a prospective basis and on a retrospective basis where actual results are within a range
of 80 per cent to |25 per cent Where dernvatives or portions of hedges do not qualify for hedge accounting, they
are recorded at fair value through the Income Statement

Cash flow hedges

Dervative instruments are classified as cash flow hedges when they hedge the Group's exposure to variability in cash
flows attnbutable to a particular nsk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecast
transaction Denvative instruments qualifying for treatment as cash flow hedges are principally interest rate swaps,
gilt locks and foreign currency forward exchange contracts
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The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges 1s
deferred in equity The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion 1s recogrised immediately in the Income
Statement

Amounts deferred in reserves are recycled in profit or loss in the pencds when the hedged items {the hedge asset or
Labslity) are recognised in the Income Statement

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when the Group revokes the hedging instrument relatronship, or the hedging
instrument expires, 1s sold, terminated, exerased or no longer qualifies for hedge account Any cumulative gain or
loss deferred in equity at that time remains In equity and 1s recogmised when the forecast transaction Is ultimately
recognised in profit or loss When a forecast transaction 1s no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss
that was deferred in equity Is recognised immediately in the Income Statement

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

IFRS 7 requires that financial instruments that are measured in the statement of financial position at fair value are
measured by level of the following fair value measurement hierarchy

¢ Level | Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets 1s based on quoted market prices at the
reporting date. A market 1s regarded as active iIf quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent
actual and regutarly occurning market transactions on an arm's length basis The quoted market prnice used
for financial assets held by the group 1s the current bid price

e Llevel 2 Inputs other than quoted prices Included that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices}or Indirectly (that Is, derived from prices)}

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded 1n an active market {for example over the counter
denvatives or infrequently traded listed investments) are determined by using valuation techniques These
valuation techriques maximise the use of observable market data where it 1s available and rely as little as
possible on entity specfic estimates If all significant inputs required to far value an instrument are
observable the instrument 1s included in level 2

e level 3 Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs)

Specific valuation techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis, are used to determine fair value of the
remaining financial instruments

in the absence of quoted market prices, denvatives are valued by using quoted forward prices for the
underlying commodity/currency and discounted using quoted interest rates {both as at the close of business
on the balance sheet date) Hence denvatives are within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy as defined within
IFRS 7

Impairment of financial assets

A financial asset 1s assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there 1s any objective evidence that it 1s
impaired A financial asset 1s impaired If objective evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after the iitial
recognition of the asset, and that loss event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset
that can be estimated reliably Individually significant assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis When a
subsequent event causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in smparment loss 1s reversed
through the Income Statement

All impairment losses are recognised in the Income Statement
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Notes to the Financial Statements

[ Group revenue
Year ended 31 March

Fares

Revenue in respect of free travel for the elderly and the

disabled

Charges to London boroughs

Charges to transport operators
Commercial advertising receipts *

Rents receivable

Museum income

Contnibutions from third parties to operating costs
Ticket and photocard commission income
ATM and car parking income

Training and specialist services *

Cycle hire scheme *

Other *

Cther revenue comprises numerous other travel services, none of which are sufficiently matenal to warrant

separation in the analysis above

* Figures for the prior year have been amended to align with the current year presentation.

2015 % of 2014 % of
£m total £m total
3,987.2 85.6 3,807 4 858
321.0 6.9 3087 6.9
2.7 0.1 27 o.1

9.2 0.2 92 02
169.5 3.6 152 2 34
57.4 1.2 568 13
8.4 0.2 83 02

2.0 - 09 -
13.8 0.3 135 0.3
2.3 0.3 99 02
12.0 0.3 1z 0.3
15.6 0.3 131 0.3
45.2 1.0 44 9 [.0
4,656.3 100.0 4,4393 000
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2  Group operating loss
Year ended 31 March

Note

The operating loss Is stated after charging/{crediting):

Capital items

Amortisation of intangible assets 10
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment — owned i
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment — leased 1
Release of grant to meet the depreciation charge on the historical cost of

depreciated fixed assets 26
Other operating costs

Employee costs 5
Payments under operating leases

Inventory expensed during the year

Auditor's remuneration

Fees for the audit of these financial statements
Fees for the audit of subsidiary financial statements

Fees for non-audst services

2015 2014
£m £m
24.7 189
783.3 7747
43.0 49 |
(598.2) {575 1)
1,488.4 },440 2
51.7 237
63.1 630
0.8 09
0.1 02
0.4 03
[.3 | 4
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

3  Group grant income

Year ended 3{ March

Grant from Transport for London to fund operations

Other revenue grant

4  Group other gains and losses

Year ended 3! March

Change n fair value of investment properties
Net (loss) / gain on disposal of investment properties

Net gan / (loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment

5 Group employee costs

Year ended 31 March

The average number of persons employed in the year were:

Bus operations
London Underground
Rail operations
Crossrail

Tube Lines

Group services
Victonia Coach Station
Other activities

Total

Thelr aggregate remuneration comprised:

Wages and salarnes
Social securnity costs

Pension costs

2015 2014

£m £m

786.1 7770

- 02

786.1 777 2

2015 20i4
Note £m £m
12 198.1 174 |
{0.1) 133
1.0 (24 0)

199.0 163 4

2015 2014
Number Number

1,096 1,155

17,188 16,447

181 |57

638 576

{,877 1,826

823 834

82 81

109 110

21,994 21,186
Note £m Em
1,135.1 i,1018

106.0 10t 3

28 247.3 237 1
,488.4 1,440 2
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Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

6 Directors' emoluments

Year ended 3/ March 2015 2014
Number Number

Number of directors who were remunerated by the Group during the year:

The directors received no emoluments or benefits from the Company
Directors’ emoluments and benefits were borne by Transport for Londen for five directors (20(3/1 4 five)

The amounts reported In the table above represent the amounts patd to the directors during the year.
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7/ Group financial income

Year ended 31 March
Note
Premiums received on the early repayment of loans to Transport for London

Net farr value movement on denvative financial instruments not subject to hedge
accounting

Other

8 Group financial expenses

Year ended 31 March
Note

Interest payable on external loans and derivative financial instruments
Interest payable to Transport for London

Interest on finance lease Liabilities

Contingent rentals on PFI liabitities

Premiums on early repayment of borrowings and finance leases

Net interest on defined benefit obligation 28

Less amounts capitalised nto qualifying assets

2015 2014
£m £m

- 232
21.3 -
0.4 05
21.7 237
2015 2014
£m £m
30.9 259
273.8 2457
43.6 47 6
8.3 83

- 30.2

1.4 28
358.0 3605
(73.7) {59 3}
284.3 301 2

The tnterest rates charge on loan from Transport for Londen range between | 73% and 4 5% (2013/14 | 73% and

4 5%)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

9 Taxation
The Company and its subsidianies are assessable individually to taxation in accordance with current tax legislation All
companies, with the exception of Crossrail Limited, are able to claim group relief.

a) Corparation tax - Group
The Group tax chargeflcredn) for the year, based on the rate of corporation tax of 21% (2013/14 23%) compnsed

Group Group

Year ended 31 March 2015 2014
£m £m

Current tax
UK corporation tax - 0l
Total current tax charge - Ol
Deferred tax chargef{credit) - -
Total income tax charge for the year - 0l
Reconciliation of tax charge

Group Group
Year ended 31 March 2015 2014

£m Em

Profitfiloss) before tax {20.0) {113 5)
Profitf(loss) before tax multiplied by standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of
21%{2013/14 23%) {4.2) {26 1)
Effects of
Non-taxable and non-deductible tems (0.2) 64
Amount credited to current tax for which no deferred tax was recognised (13.6) {3 1)
Tax losses carned forward for which no deferred tax was recogmised 18.0 229
Total tax charge for the year - 01

b} Unrecognised deferred tax assets - Group

The Group has a potential net deferred tax asset of £1,593 6m (2014 £1,520 9m) in respect of the following items

Group Group

Year ended 3! March 2015 2014
£m £m

Deductible temporary differences 527.6 464 5
Tax losses 1,066.0 1,056 4
1,593.6 1,520 9

The tax losses and the deductible temporary differences do not expire under current tax legislation Deferred tax
assets have not been recognised In respect of these items because 1t is not considered probable that there will be
future taxable profit available against which the benefits can be utilised

Transport Trading Limited Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015 42




Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

9 Taxation (continued)

¢) Movements in recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year - Group

Deferred tax assets have been recognised to the extent of the deferred tax liabilities at the balance sheet date Therr
movements during the years were in respect of the following ttems

Balanceat | Movementin  Balance at 31
April year March
For the year ended 31 March 2015 £ £m £m
Deferred tax assets
Deferred government grant « 19900 900 2,080.0
Derivative financral instruments 350 10 36.0
Property, plant and equipment - accelerated capital allowances 3539 03 354.2
23789 913 2,470.2
Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment - potential capital gain (2,261 3) {56 7) (2,318.0)
fnvestment properties - potential capital gain (1138) 368 (77.0)
Assets held for sate - potential capital gain - (75 1) (75.1)
Other (3 8) 37 {0.1)
(2,378 9) (9131 (2,470.2)
Net deferred tax asset/{liability) - - -
For the year ended 3{ March 2014
Defarred tax assets
Deferred government grant 1,588 6 401 4 1,990 0
Denvative financial instruments 527 (17 7) 350
Property, plant and equipment - accelerated capital allowances 889.4 {535 5) 3539
2,530.7 {151 8) 2,378 9
Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment - potential capital gain (2,435.3) i740 (2,261 3)
Investment properties - potential capital gan {93.1) {207) {113 8)
Other (23 (1 5) (3 8)
{2,530 7) 1518 (2,378 9)

Net deferred tax asset/{liability) - - -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

9 Taxation (continued)

The key movements in the period were due to the following

*  The deferred tax hability ansing on investment properties, including those held as available for sale, has
increased due to movements in the market value of the properties

*  The property, plant and equipment deferred tax asset has changed in the period due to assets acquired In
the year, movements in the market value of assets held and capital allowances disclaimed

*  Included within the deferred tax balances for property, plant and equipment and investment properties 15
the deferred tax on revaluations of £99 2m recognised in other comprehensive income

*+  The deferred tax asset ansing in respect of denvative financial instruments has increased due to movement
in the fair value of derivatives

d) Unrecognised deferred tax assets - Company
The Company has a potential deferred tax asset of £21 2m {2014 £26 Om) No deferred tax asset has been
recognised as it 15 not considered probable that there will be future taxable profit available against which the unused

tax losses and unused tax credits can be utiised The deductible temporary differences do not expire under current
tax legislation

The potential deferred tax asset can be attnbuted to the following

2015 2014

fm Em

Deductible temporary differences 0.1 02
Tax losses 21.1 258
Deferred tax asset 21.2 260

The Corporation Tax rate was reduced from 24% to 23% on | Apnl 2013, and from 23% to 21% on | Apnl 2014 On
2 July 2013 a further Corporation Tax rate reduction to 20% was enacted, effective from | Aprnil 2015 Deferred tax
balances at 31 March 2015 have been therefore calculated at a rate of 20%
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

[0 Intangible assets

a) Group intangible assets

Cost or valuation

At | Apnt 2013

© Additions

Transfers between asset classes

Transfer from property, plant and equipment
Disposals

At 31 March 2014

Additions

Transfers between asset classes

Transfer from property, plant and equipment
Disposals

At 31 March 2015

Amortisation and impairment
At | Apnl 2013

Charge for the year

Disposals

At 31 March 2014

Charge for the year

Disposals

At 31 March 2015

Net book value at 31 March 2015
Net book value at 31 March 2014

Note

Intangible
Software assets under

costs Goodwill construction Total
£m Em fm £m
899 349 2 312 4703
139 - 169 308
103 - {103) -
- - 0l 0.1
{7 3) - - (7 3)
106 8 3492 379 493 9
73 - 67 140
300 - 30 0) -
4 - 55 69
{02) - - (02)
145.3 349.2 20.1 5t4.6
459 349 2 - 3951
189 - - 189
(7 0) - - (7 0)
578 349 2 - 407 0
247 - - 247
(0 2) - - (02)
82.3 349.2 - 431.5
63.0 - 20.4 83.1
490 - 379 869

Assets under construction comprise software assets under development
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

|0 Intangible assets

b} Company intangible assets

Cost or valuation

At | April 2013

Additions

Transfers between asset classes

Transfer from property, plant and equipment
At 31 March 2014

Additions

Transfers between asset classes

Transfer from property, plant and equipment
At 31 March 2015

Amortisation and impairment
At | Apnl 2013

Charge for the year

At 3| March 2014

Charge for the year

At 3] March 2015

Net book value at 31 March 2015
Net book value at 31 March 2014

Note

Intangible
Software assets under

costs construction Total
Em £m £m
41 5 213 628
130 79 209
36 {3 6} -
- 0l 0l

58 1\ 257 838
67 10 77
300 (30 0) -
- 70 70
94.8 3.7 98.5
28 - 128
9.8 - 98
226 - 226
191 - 191
41.7 - 41.7
53.1 3.7 56.8
355 257 612
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Il  Property, plant and equipment

al Group property, ptant and equipment at 31 March 2015 comprised the following elements:

Infrastructure
and office Plant and Assets under
buidings Relling stock  equipment construction Totat

Note £Em £m £m Em Em
Cost or valuation
At | April 2014 23,714 6 4,525 | 1,255 2 78197 37.3146
Additions 827 - 99 2 3.0545 3,236 4
Transfers between asset classes 1,0363 377 1 55| (1,468 5) -
Transfer to intangible assets 10 - - 01 {7 0 (69
Disposals (296 0) {36 5) (22 8) - (355 3) .
Revaluation 950 - - - 950 |
At 31 March 2015 24,632.6 4,865.7 1,386.8 9,398.7 40,283.8
Depreciation
At | Aprit 2014 8.747 2 1,980 3 802 8 - 11,5303
Charge for the year z 6323 1168 772 - 8263
Transfers between asset classes {9 2) - 92 - -
Disposals 272 4) (36 5) (22 6) - (331 5)
Revaluation {4 2) - - - {42)
At 31 March 2015 9,093.7 2,060.6 866.6 - 12,020.9
Net book value at 31 March 2013 15,538.9 2,805.1 520.2 9,398.7 28,262.9
Net book value at 3| March 2014 14,967 4 2,544 8 452 4 78197 25,7843
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Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

[1  Property, plant and equipment (continued)

bl Group property, plant and equipment at 31 March 2014 comprised the following elements:

Cost or valuation

At | April 2013

Additions

Transfers between asset classes
Transfers to mntangible assets
Disposals

Revaluation

At 3| March 2014

Depreciation

At | Apnl 2013
Charge for the year
Eisposals
Revaluaticn

At31 March 2014

c}  Capitalisation of borrowing costs - Group

Note

Infrastructure
and office Plant and Assets under

bulldings Rolling stock  egquipment construction Total
£m £m £m Em £m
22,6154 43193 1,147 5 6,563 2 34,645 4
40 1 012 7812 2,8816 3,000 1
1.0719 368 t 82 1 (1,522 1} -
- - - (01} 1)
(37 2) {162 5} {52 6) (102 9) & (355 2)
244 - - - 24 4
237146 4,525 | 1,255 2 7.8197 37,3146
8,190 2 20111 763.7 - 10,9650
6047 1277 91 4 - 8238
(23 5) (158 5} (52 3) - (234 3)
(24 2) - - - {24 2)
8,747 2 1,980 3 802 8 - 11,5303

Borrowing costs are included in the costs of qualifying assets to the extent that the asset 1s funded by borrowings
The Group opted to use the date of transition to IFRS {I Apnl 2009 as the effective date for applying IAS 23
Borrowing costs ('JAS 23°) The total borrowing costs capitalised during the year were £73 7m (2014 £59 3m)} The
cumulative borrowing costs capitalised are £197 Im (2014 £123 4m)

d} Capital commitments - Group

At 3| March 2015, the Group had capital commitments which are contracted for but not provided for in the financial
statements amounting to £3,504 0m (2014 £2,260 5m)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

| | Property, plant and equipment (continued)

e) Leased assets - Group

The net book value above includes the following amounts in respect of PFl and other leased assets

Gross cost
PFl assets

Other leased assets

Depreciation
PFi assets

Other leased assets

Net book value at 31 March 2015
Net book value at 31 March 2014

f] Group office bulldings

Infrastructure
and office

buildings Rolling stock Total
£m £m £m

756 2 45 2 801 4

- 407 7 407 7

756.2 452.9 1,209.1
2609 346 2955

- 1328 132 8

260.9 167.4 428.3
495.3 285.5 780.8
5246 2993 8239

Office buildings are valued at fasr value by DTZ, a property valuation company not connected with the Group, and by
chartered surveyors working for Transport for London, in accordance with Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors
{RICS) Guidelines Valuations are performed on a rolling basis, with approximately 75% of the portfolio by value being
valued each year The value of these buildings at 31 March 2015 was £248 Om {2014 £153 4m) and the historic cost

was £35 0m (2014 £36 3m)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

|| Property, plant and equipment {continued)

gl Company property, plant and equipment at 31 March 2015 comprised the following elements:

Cost or valuation
At | Apnl 2014

Additions
Transfers between asset classes

Transfer to intangible assets
Revaluation
At 3| March 2015

Depreciation

At | Apnl 2014
Charge for the year
Revaluation

At 31 March 2015

Net book value at 31 March 2015
Net book value at 31 March 2014

Infrastructure
and office Plant and Assets under
buldings equipment construction Total
Note £m £m £m £m
160 0 2242 355 4197
06 13 71 90
19 209 (22 8) -
10 - - {70 {7 0)
227 - - 227
185.2 246.4 12.8 444.4
497 169 2 - 2189
190 183 - 373
(3 4) - - (3 4)
65.3 187.5 - 252.8
119.9 58.9 12.8 191.6
1103 550 35.5 200 8
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

|| Property, plant and equipment {continued)

h) Company property, plant and equipment at 31 March 2014 comprised the following elements:

Infrastructure )
and office Plant and Assets under
bulldings equipment construction Total
Note £m £m £m £m
Cost or valuation
At | Apnl 2013 140 6 201 6 430 3852
Additions 1t 9 50 156 325
Transfers between asset classes 06 22 4 (23 0O -
Transfer to intangible assets 10 - - 1) on
Disposals - (48) - 48
Revaluation 69 - - 69
At 3] March 2014 1600 2242 355 4197
Depreciation
At | Apnl 2013 398 156 8 - 196 6
Charge for the year 150 169 - 3t g
Disposals - (4 5) - {4 5)
Revaluation 51N - - 51)
At 3| March 2014 49 7 1692 - 2189

il Capitalisation of borrowing costs - Company

Direct borrowing costs are included in the cost of qualifying assets to the extent that the asset I1s funded by
borrowings Total borrowing costs capitalised during the year were £nil (2014 £nil) The cumulative borrowing costs
capitalised are also £nil {2014 £nil)

ji Capital commitments - Company

At 3! March 2015, the Company had capital commrtments which are contracted for but not provided for in the
financial staterments amounting to £13 Om {2014 £15 3m)

k] Leased assets — Company

The Company did not have any PFl or other leased assets as at 31 March 2015 and 2014

i} Office bulldings - Company

Office buildings are valued at fair value lopen market value on an existing use basisl, by DTZ, a property valuation
company not connected with the Group, and by chartered surveyors working for Transport for London, n
accordance with Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) Guidelines Valuations are performed on a rolling
basis, with approximately 75% of the portfolio by value being valued each year The value of these buildings at 31
March 2015 was £61 7m (2014 £39 Om) and the historic cost was £14 8m (2014 £15 9m)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

|2 Investment properties

Group
Note Em
Valuation
At | Aprnil 2013 41472
Additions 16
Disposals {13 8)
Revaluation 4 174 |
At 3| March 2014 576 1
Additrons 273
Transfer (to)/from assets held for sale . 15 (375 7
Disposals {43)
Revaluation 4 198 |
At 31 March 2015 421.5

The fair value of the Group's investment properties at 31 March 2015 has been arnved at on the basis of a valuation
carned out at that date by DTZ, a property valuation company not connected with the Group

Values are calculated using a discount cash flow approach and are based on current rental iIncome plus anticipated
uplifts at the next rent review, lease expiry or break option, taking into consideration lease incentives  Uplifts and
the discount rate are dernved from rates implied by recent market transactions on similar properties

Properties are valued 1n accordance with the Valuation Standards (eighth edition) published by the Royal Institution of
Chartered Surveyors Properties with a carrying value in excess of £5,000,000 are valued annually Propertres with a
value 1n excess of £250,000 but less than £5,000,000 are revalued every three years Properties with a value In
excess of £100,000 but less than £250,000 are revalued every five years

The Group's Investment properties are let on a tenant repainng basis The Group's maintenance obligations are
ltmited to common areas and vacant property units

Company
Em

Valuation
At | Apnl 2013 -
Addwtions | 6
At 31 March 2014 16
Revaluation 0.2
At 31 March 2015 i.8

The Company's investment property relates to Kingsbury Parade
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

I3 Investment in subsidiary and associated undertakings

Company Company

2015 2014

£m £m

At | Apnl 4,465.0 2,865.0
Additions 1,500.0 1,6000
At 3| March 5,965.0 4,465 0

During the year, the Group invested £1,500 0m (2013/14 £1,600 Om) in Crossrail share capital
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

I3 Investment in subsidiary and associated undertakings

{(continued)

The Company's principal subsidiaries are,

Subsidiaries

London Underground Limited*
LUL Nominee BCV Limited*
LUL Nominee S5L Limited*
Tube Lines Limited*

Rail for London Limited*

Principal activity

Passenger transport by underground train

Maintenance of underground lines
Maintenance of underground lines
Maintenance of underground lines

Passenger transport by rail

Docklands Light Railway Limited {DLR}* Passenger transport by rait

City Arrport Rail Enterprises PLC*

City Airport Raill Enterprises (Holdings)
Limited*

Woolwich Arsenal Rail Enterprises
Limited*

Woolwich Arsenal Rail Enterprises
{Holdings) Limited*

Tramtrack Croydon Limited™*
London Bus Services Limited*
London Buses Limited*
Victoria Coach Station Limited
London River Services Limited*

Crossrail Limited

Transport for London Finance Limited *

London Transport Museumn Limited

London Transport Museum {Trading}
Limited

TTL Properties Limited
TTL Earl's Court Properties Lumited

The financial statements of all the above companies are lodged at Companies House

Construction and maintenance of DLR bines

Holding company

Construction and maintenance of DLR lines

Holding company

Passenger transport by tram

Passenger transport by bus

Dial-a-Ride

Coach station

Pier operator

Construction of Crossrall infrastructure
Manages financial nsk of the Group

Chanitable company

Trading company
Holding company
Holding company

Percentage

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%

100%

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%

Registered number

01900907
06221959
06242508
03923425
05965930

02052677
04411523

04602333

05372373

05357070
03092613
03914787
01900906
00205610
03485723
04212657
06745516
06495761

06527755
08961151
08951012

* All cutstanding liabilihies of these undertakings as at 3| March 2015 have been provided with a parent company
guarantee under s 479C of the Companies Act 2006 Thesr individual financial statements for the year ended 3| March
2015 were therefore entitled to exemption from audit under 5 479A of the Companies Act 2006

In addition the Group and Company hotd, for a nominal consideration of £3,737, a 37% holding in the ownership and
voting nghts of Earls Court Partnership Ltd, a newly incorporated property development company, incorporated in
England The Group's investment 1s accounted for using the equity method in these consolidated accounts, however as
trading had not yet commenced, as at 31 March 2015, the value of the Group’s holding in the associate was immaterial
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Notes to the Financial Statements {(continued)

|4 Inventories

Group Group
2045 2014
£m £m
Raw materials and consumables 51.4 41 8
Goods held for resale 0.8 08
52.2 426
There 1s no matenal difference between the Statement of Financial Posrtion value of inventories and their net
realisable value
The Company did not have any inventory
|5 Assets classified as held for sale
Group Group
2015 2014
Note £m £m
Balance outstanding at start of year - -
Assets newly classified as held for sale
Investment properties 12 375.7 -
375.7 -

The Company did not have any assets classified as held for sale

On 10 February 2015, the Group entered into an Escrow Arrangement with members of the Capital & Counties

Properties PLC {Capco) group with a view to granting a 999 year lease over land at Earl's Court into a joint venture
company, Earls Court Partnership Limited (ECP) ECP 1s a imited company, registered in England, that 1s owned 37%
by a subsidiary of the TTL Group and 63% by a subsidiary of the Capco group Subsequent to the year end, on 2 April

2015, a lease agreement was signed and the property was transferred

As at 31 March 2015 the Group's investment in the Earl’s Court land has been reclassified from investment property
into assets held for sale and 1s held at its sale valuation This valuation was carned out at 31 March by Jones Lang

LaSailie Limited, a property valuation company not connected with the Group
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|6 Trade and other receivables

Current

Trade receivables

Amounts due from ultimate parent

Other tax and social secunty

Grant debtors

Amounts due relating to sale of non-current assets
Other receivables

Prepayments

Capital debtors

Accrued iIncome

Non-current
Amounts due from third parties
Prepayments

Amounts due from third parties include funds totaling £832 Om (2014 £450 | m} advanced to Network Rail

Group Group
2015 2014
fm £m
71.4 1123
146.0 2184
77.9 762
4.5 68
9.9 228
85.6 283
i15.5 130 8
6.5 64
12.6 120
529.9 6140
821.3 443 |
40.5 4512
861.8 488 3

Infrastructure Limited to provide interim financing for the construction of assets related to the Crossrail project
£381 9m was advanced at periodic intervals during 2014/15 The receivable 1s non interest beaning and has been
discounted to its fair value of £821 3m (2014 £439 3m) using a discount rate of | 125 per cent (2014 | 125 per cent)

It 1s repayable in full on 15 May 2016

Current

Trade receivables

Amounts due from fellow group undertakings
Other tax and social secunity

Other receivables

Prepayments

Accrued income

Non-current
Amounts due from third parties
Prepayments

Company Company
2015 2014
£m £m
42.9 58 4
241.1 243 3
6.1 91
48.4 -
10.4 106
i.2 21
350.1 3235
- 28

0.5 05
0.5 33
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|7 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank

Cash in hand and in transit

Cash at bank

Cash in hand and in transit

Group Group
2015 2014
Em £m
13.7 652
19.3 216
33.0 868
Company Company
2015 2014
Em £m
.3 104
0.6 03
1.9 107
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|8 Trade and other payables

Current

Trade payables

Capital works

Retentions on capital contracts

Amounts due to ultimate parent

Receipts in advance for travelcards, bus passes and Cyster cards
Wages and salaries

Interest accruals

Other deferred iIncome

Other taxation and social security

Accruals and other payables

Non-current

Retentions on capital contracts
Trade payables

Other deferred iIncome

Accruals and other payables

Current

Trade payables

Capital works

Amounts due to fellow Group undertakings

Receipts in advance for travelcards, bus passes and Oyster cards
Wages and salarnes

Other deferred income

Other taxation and social secunty

Accruals and other payables

Non-current
Trade payables

Accruals and deferred income

Group Group
2015 2014
£m Em
90.8 bi62
617.8 580 |
1.0 25
181.5 2247
394.9 356.6
90.4 84.9
4.5 36
34.6 703
26.5 278
332.5 3230
1,774.5 1,789 7
49.3 277
8.8 91
9.6 139
23.0 87
90.7 594
Company Company
2015 2014
£m £m
9.0 171
1.4 53
97.8 1359
394.8 35612
4.0 33
19.7 17 2
0.3 02
41.9 345
568.9 5697
8.6 91
7.3 70
15.9 161
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|9 Borrowings and overdraft

Group Group
2015 2014
£m Em
Non-current
8,098.8 7449 6

Amounts due to ultimate parent

See note 27 (Funding and Financial sk management) for further information about the maturity and interest rate
profiles of the Group’s borrowings

Company Company

2015 2014
£m £m

Non-current
30.4 304

Amounts due to ultimate parent
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20 Finance lease liabilities

a) Group finance lease liabilities

Principal

{present value

Minimum of minimum

lease lease

payments Interest  payments)

At 31 March 2015 £m £m £m
Within one year 114.9 (392 75.7
Between one and two years 1173 (34 1) 83.2
Between two and five years 257 4 (737 183.7
Later than five years 3187 (90 8) 227.9
808 3 (237 8) 570.5

At 31 March 2014

Within one year il 6 (43 7) 679
Between one and two years 1149 (39 2} 757
Between two and five years 2950 {87 3) 207 7
Later than five years 398 4 (111 2) 2872
9199 (281 4) 6385

2015 2014
Principal outstanding £m £m
Current 75.7 67 9
Non-current 494.8 5706
570.5 6385
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20 Finance lease liabilities (continued)

The Group holds a proportion of its property, plant and equipment under finance lease arrangements as outlined n

note | |

Finance lease Labilities on the balance sheet are calculated as the present value of minimum lease payments
outstanding

Terminal 5

The Group 1s party to an agreement with Heathrow Airport Limited to construct, maintain and operate an extension
of the Piccadilly ine to Terrminal 5 at Heathrow Airport  The agreement entitles the Group to the exclusive nght to
use the rait infrastructure to provide passenger rail services for an initial period of 30 years with an option to extend
for a further 999 years In accordance with IFRIC 4, as the agreement conveys the night to use the rail infrastructure,
the asset should be accounted for as if It were a leased asset In accordance with |IAS {7 the asset 1s accounted for
as a finance lease and an asset and corresponding finance lease creditor should be recorded on the statement of
financial position  The vatue of the assets and finance lease credmor is calculated as the lower of the present value of
minimum lease payments and the fair value of the assets

Under the terms of the agreement the payments are entirely contingent on the number of passengers passing
through Heathrow underground station 1AS 17 states that the calculation of the present value of minimum lease
payments shoutd exclude contingent payments Consequently the asset and finance lease creditor recorded on the
Statement of Financial Position have no value

b) Company finance lease Uabilities

The Company did not have any finance lease Liabilities at 31 March 2015 and 2014

21 Private finance initiative contracts

Private Finance Initiative contracts accounted for under IFRIC [2: Service concession arrangements

The Group I1s party to the following Private Finance Initiative {"PFI') arrangements where the Group controls the use of
the infrastructure and the residual interest in the infrastructure at the end of the arrangement These arrangements
are treated as service concession arrangements and are accounted for in accordance with IFRIC |2 Service

concession arrangements [‘IFRIC 12')

The Group therefore recognises PFl assets as items of plant, property and equipment together with a hability to pay
for them The fair values of services recerved under the contract are recorded as operating expenses

In accordance with IFRIC |2, the unitary charge is apportioned between the repayment of the liability, financing costs
and charges for services The charge for services is recognised as an expense in net operating costs and the finance
costs are charged to financial expenses in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
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2|  Private finance initiative contracts {continued)

Contract

London Underground Limited (‘LUL’)

Connect

British Transport Police {London
Underground)

Docklands Light Railway Limited
('DLR")
Greenwich

Contract dates

1999 to 2019

1999 to 202 | with a voluntary break
option on provision of 12 months
written notice

1996 to 2021

Description

Design, installation, management and
mamntenance of integrated digital radio
system

The contract requires LU to make an
annual unitary payment which 1s
adjusted for indexation and
performance as specified 1n the
contract ,

Provision and ongoing management
and maintenance of operational
infrastructure to support efficient
policing of the Jubilee Line Extension
and the delivery of the long-term
policing strategy for LU

The contract requires LU to make a
base annual unitary payment which is
adjusted for indexation and
performance as specified in the
contract

Design, construction and ongoing
maintenance of the Greenwich
extension to the Docklands Light
Railway.

The contract requires DLR to make
payments, which are charged monthly
and adjusted for any penalties relating
to adverse performance against output
measures describing all relevant
aspects of the contract
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22 Derivative financial instruments

Cash flow hedges

Group Group Group Group
1015 2015 1014 2014
Notional Notional
Fair value amount Fair value amount
£m £m £m £m
Current assets
Foreign currency forward contracts 22.6 484.0 - -
Current liabilities
Foreign currency forward contracts 1.3 113.4 03 7.0
Non-current liabilities
Interest rate swaps and forward starting interest rate swaps t01.3 830.9 675 8320

The Company has not entered into any derivative financial instruments
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23  Provisions

al Group provisions

Compensation
Environmental harm
Other

Compensation
Ernvironmental harm
Other

Current

Non-current

Compensation

At | April Uulised Charge for Releases in At 31 March
2014 inthe year the year the year 2015

fm £m £m £m £m

68 4 {13 8} 356 (39 9) 50.3

14 - - - 1.4

355 {19 203 {08) 53.1
1053 (157 559 (40 7) 104.8
At | Apnl Utilised Charge for Releasesin At 31 March
2013  inthe year the year the year 2014
£m £m £m Em £m

i44 (34 62 4 {50) 68 4

I 4 - - - i 4

12 {02 353 {o 8) 355

170 (36 977 {5 8) 1053
2015 2014
f£m £m

102.2 812

2.6 241

104.8 105.3

The Group has provisions for expected compensation and contractual clarms that anise in respect of disputes arising
in the ordinary course of business The provisions recorded are based on management's best estimate at the
statement of financial position date of the likely loss to be incurred through settlement Reflecting the nherent
uncertainty with many legal proceedings and claim settlements, the timing and amount of the outflows could differ

from the amount provided. Based on current estimates management expects that these amounts, which are based

on known facts and take account of past expernence for similar items, will be settled within the next one to five

years Where materal the provision held 1s discounted to its present value

Environmental harm

Environmental harm relates to potential costs associated with damage to the environmental as a result of actions

taken In the past

Other

Other provisions include voluntary severance costs arising from reorganisations and other smaller claims
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23  Provisions

b} Company provisions

At { April Utiised  Charge for Releases n At 3| March
2014  inthe year the year the year 2015
£m £m £m £m Em
Compensation 0l - 08 - 09
At | Aprit Utiblsed  Charge for Releases in At 31 March
2013 inthe year the year the year 2014
£m £m £m Em Em
Compensation 42 - - (41 0l
2015 2014
£m Em
Current 0.9 |

Compensation

The Company has provisions for expected compensation and contractual claims that anse in respect of disputes
ansing in the ordinary course of business The provisions recorded are based on management’s best estimate at the
balance sheet date of the likely loss to be incurred through settlement Reflecting the inherent uncertainty with
many legal proceedings and claim settlements, the timing and amount of the outflows could differ from the amount
provided Based on current estimates management expects that these amounts, which are based on known facts
and take account of past expenence for similar items, will be settled within the next one to five years Where
matenial the provision held 1s discounted to its present value

24  Contingencies

There are a number of uncertainties surrounding projects, including claims in the course-of negotiations, which may
affect the Group’s financial performance Where claims are possible but not probable, or unquantifiable, such claims
are treated as contingent liabilities Contlngent! liabilibes are not recognised in the financial statements, but are
monitored to ensure that, where a possible obligation has become probable or a transfer of economic benefits has
become probable, a provision is made

The Company has also provided a guarantee under section 479C of the Compantes Act 2006 n respect of all
babilities outstanding at 31 March 2015 of the majonty of its subsidiary undertakings, in order that those subsidiaries
may take advantage of the exemption from audit of their indiwidual financial statements Those subsidianes for which
a guarantee has been provided are as listed in note 13

The impact of these contingent babilities on the Group's financial performance, iquidity or financial position is not
considered to be matenal
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25 Financial commitments

a} Operating leases — The Group as lessee

The Group operating lease agreements primarily relate to office space, motor vehicles and rait access All leases have

been entered into on commercaial terms

The Group 1s commutted to the following future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases

Land and Motor
buldings  Raill access vehicles Rolling stock Total
At 31 March 2015 Em £m £m £m £m
Within one year 299 42 32 185 55.8
Between one and two years 272 44 15 219 55.0
Between two and five years 60 4 25 13 715 135.7
Later than five years 262 8 169 - 2192 498.9
3803 280 60 3311 745.4
At 31 March 2014
Within one year 355 101 45 177 678
Between one and two years 310 438 23 185 566
Between two and five years 74 4 612 i0 93.5 1751
Later than five years 2326 75 0l 219.2 459 4
3735 286 79 348 9 758 9

b} Operating leases — The Group as lessor

The Group leases out commercial, retail and office property, rail access and land that 1t holds as a result of its

infrastructure holdings

At the Statement of Financial Position date, the Group had contracted with customers for the following future

minimum lease payments

At 31 March 2015

Within one year

Between one and two years
Between two and five years

Later than five years

At 31 March 2014

Within one year

Between cne and two years
Between two and five years

Later than five years

Land and Motor

buildings  Rail access vehicles Total
£m £m £m £m

430 85 01 51.6
361 41 0l 40.3
786 e - 90.2
4750 74 - 482.4
6327 316 02 664.5
432 90 02 52 4
385 55 a1 44 |

76 4 39 - 803
5263 18 - 528 |
684 4 202 c3 7049
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25 Financial commitments (continued)

¢} Operating leases — The Company as lessee

The Company has lease agreements primarily related to office space. All leases have been entered into on

commercial terms

At 31 March 2015

Within one year

Between one and two years
Between two and five years

Later than five years

At 31| March 2014

Within one year

Between one and two years
Between two and five years

Later than five years

Land and
buildings

Em
2.5
2.1
3.5

18.2
26.3

34
25
46
193
298

d) Operating leases — The Company as lessor with third parties

The Company leases out commercral, retail and office property, and land that it holds as a result of its infrastructure

holdings

At the Statement of Financial Position date, the Company had contracted with customers for the following future

minimum lease payments

At 31 March 2015

Within one year

Between one and two years
Between two and five years

Later than five years

At 31 March 2014

Within one year

Between cne and two years
Between two and five years

Later than five years

Land and
buitdings

- £m
|0
| O
20
24

64

10
(0
10
[ 2
42
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25  Financial commitments (continued)

e} Operating leases — The Company as lessor with related parties

The Company leases out commercial, retail and office property, and land that it holds as a result of its infrastructure

holdings

At the Statement of Financial Position date, the Company had contracted with customers for the following future

mintmum lease payments

At 31 March 2015

Within one year

Between one and two years
Between two and five years

Later than five years

At 3| March 2014

Within one year

Between one and two years
Between two and five years

Later than five years

The inter-company lease relates to Victona Coach Station

Land and
buildings
£m

12
12
37
528
589

i0
10
40
527
587
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26 Deferred grant

Note
At | Apnl
Transport grant
Therd party contnbutions and other grants to fund property, plant and equipment
Released to the Statement of Comprehensive Income
- to meet the depreciation charge z

- on disposal of property, plant and equipment
At 31 March

At | Aprd
Transport grant {see above)

Third party contnbutions and other grants to fund property, plant and equipment
{see above)

Released to the Statement of Comprehensive Income account
- to meet the depreciation charge

- on disposal of Property, plant and equipment

At 3| March

There are no unfulfilled conditions or other contingencies attached to the grants from Transport for London

Group Group
2015 2014
£m £m
12,234.7 11,439 6
},356.8 1,395 |
47.7 703
{598.2) (575 1}
{18.4) (95 2)
13,022.6 12,234 7
Company Company
2015 2014
£m £m
138.6 107 4
15.3 46 |
- 71
{(37.3) (21 9)
- o1
{16.6 138 6

Grants from other government entities will sometimes require proof-of the expenditure that TTL has incurred as a

condition of receiving the grant
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27 Funding and financial risk management

Introduction

The Group’s comprehensive risk management process 1s the responsibility of a commuttee, the Finance and Policy
Committee ("the Committee”), of the Board of Transport for London, the Company's ultimate parent The
Committee has approved and monitors the nsk management processes, Including documented treasury policies,
counterparty limits, controlling and reporting structures

The Group’s financial instruments comprise derivatives, borrowings, finance leases, cash and cash equivalents and
various tems such as trade recewvables and payables that anse directly from operations The Group finances
operations from these financial instruments The Group does not undertake speculative treasury transactions

Financial Risks and Risk Management

The Group I1s exposed to a number of financiat nsks in the normal course of its business operations, the key ones
being

< Credit risk

< Liquidity nisk

< Market nisk
Each of these risks 1s managed in accordance with the TfL Group’s Treasury Management Strategy
Credit risk

Credit risk 1s managed on a Group-wide basis Credit risk 1s the nsk of financial loss to the Group If a customer or
counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet contractual obligations The following categones compnse the
main credit exposures of the Group

Trade and other recefvables

The majority of the Group’s trade receivables are individuals who owe amounts relating to the use of transport
infrastructure  The Group earns the majority of revenue through prepaid fares, and the recevables relate to penalty
charges The Group makes all reasonable attempts to recover penalty charges before prownding against them Other
receivables include amounts due under contractual arrangements with suppliers, and include prepayments for work
to be performed These counterparties are assessed indvidually for ther creditworthiness at the time of entening
into contract and termination provisions are inctuded to mitigate the Group's nsk

Investments

All cash balances are invested in accordance with TfL's Treasury Management Strategy that was developed with
regard to the Treasury Management Code and the Department for Communities and Local Government Guidance,
which requires a prudent approach to the investment of surplus funds with prionity given to secunty and liguidity

Counterparty lmits are set according to the assessed nsk of each counterparty and exposures are monitored against
these lmits on a regular basis Deposit imits per institution on the Approved Investment List, and the maximum
term of deposits, are linked to the credit rating of the institution (in the range of A- to AAA} from at least two credit
rating agenctes (at the time of making the deposrt)
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27 Funding and financial risk management {continued)

Derivative financial Instruments

The Group and Company spread their exposure over a number of counterparties, and have strict policies on how
much exposure can be assigned to each counterparty

The credit nsk with regard to denvative financial instruments is imited because there are arrangements n place that
limit each bank to a threshold, which if breached, allows the Group to require the bank to post collateral in cash or
eligible secunties The Group only envisages using these nghts in the event that the financial strength of the

institution has detenorated from when the limits were approved
Liquidity risk

Liquidity nsk 1s the nisk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due The Group’s
approach to managing Liquidity 1s to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient iquidity to meet its
labilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurnng unacceptable losses or nsking
damage to the Group's reputation

The Group’s exposure to iquidity nsk 15 low as Transport for London provides financial support to the Group In
accordance with the Local Government Act 2003 Transport for London sets an affordable borrowing timit As long as
the affordable borrowing Limit 1s not exceeded, Transport for London i1s able to borrow from the Public Works Loan
Board, raise debt on the capital markets through both its established Medium Term Note programme and
Commercial Paper programme, and subject to meeting the relevant criteria, borrow at competitive interest rates
from the European Investment Bank There I1s therefore no significant risk that Transport for London would be unable
to raise finance to meet the Transport Trading Limited group financial commitments

The contractual matunties of the Group and Company's financial biabilities are listed later in this note
Market risk

Market risk 1s the nsk that changes in market pnices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices
will affect the Group's income, expenditure or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The Group, through
its wholly owned subsidiary, Transport for London Finance Limited, uses denvatives {hedging instruments) to reduce
exposure to interest rate and foreign exchange rate movements (the hedged nsks) on highly probable future
transactions The Group does not use derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes

On inception, all interest rate denvatives are designated in highly effective hedge relationships and hedge accounting
1s applied if a dervative should no longer satisfy the hedging critena in accordance with adopted 1AS 39 Financral
Instruments. Recognition and measurement {'IAS 39'), hedge accounting ceases and the denvative 1s fair valued
immediately through the Income Statement

The use of derivative Instruments can itself give rise to credit and market nsk Market risk i1s the possibility that future
changes 1in interest rates may make a derivative more or less valuable Since the Group uses derivatives for nsk
management, market risk relating to derivative mstruments 1s principally offset by changes in the cash flows of the
transactions being hedged

Transport Trading Limited Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015 71




Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

27 Funding and financial risk management {continued)

For the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014, all interest rate dervatives were assessed as highly effective.
Accordingly, the majonity of the movement in the fair value of the denvatives was recognised in other comprehensive
iIncome and expense

Foreign exchange risk

The Group has no matenal financial assets or lLabilties denominated in foreign currencies, and thus has no
translation exposure to gains or losses ansing from movements in exchange rates For 2014/15, the broad policy on
managing transactional foreign exchange nsk ansing from contractual obligations with overseas providers was to pass
the exchange risk to the vendor For specific transactions where the risk was retained by the Group, exchange rate
exposures were managed through the use of forward foreign exchange contracts At 3| March 2015, the Group held
forward foreign exchange contracts totalling £3 2m (2014 £7 0m) to hedge planned future Eurc payments related to
the purchase of tram rolling stock on behalf of fellow Group undertakings These were in designated hedging
relationships and have been assessed as being 100% effective The aggregate amount of losses under forward foreign
exchange contracts in formally designated hedging relationships that has been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the cash flow hedging reserve in respect of anticipated future transactions was £nit (2014
£0 3m). It 1s expected that the hedged purchases will take place in the penod to 28 June 2016 The matunty of these
contracts i1s disclosed later in this note

As at 31 March 2015, the Group also held forward fareign exchange swaps to hedge £594 2m (2014 £nil) future Euro
receipts in relation to short term Euro investments held by the Company's parent, Transport for London These
contracts were not n formally designated hedging relationships for accounting purposes, as TfL i1s outside the
Transport Trading Limited Group, and hence hedge accounting has not been applied A fair value movement on
these contracts totaling £21 3m (2014 £nil) has therefore been recognised directly in the Income Statement within
financial income

Where funds were received in specific currencies in which the Group expected to have future exposures, the
Investment Strategy made allowances to place these funds on deposit This gave the Group the flexibiity to offer
certain payments in specific foreign currencies where required

Sensitivity analysis on foreign exchange risk

As at 3| March 2015 the Group holds Euro forward foreign exchange contracts with a combined nominal value of
£591 O0m (2014 £7 Om) which are designated as cash flow hedges

A 10 per cent increase/{decrease) in GBP against the Euro would increasefldecrease} the farr value of these denivative
instruments by £51 8m/f(63 3m) (2014 (decreaselfincrease by £{0 6)m/£0 8m))

The Group has no other material exposure to foreign exchange rate movements

Interest risk
The Group is mainly exposed to interest rate nsk on its actual and planned future borrowings from TfL

As at 31 March 2015, the Group, through its wholly owned subsidiary Transport for London Finance Limited, held 18
interest rate swaps at a notional value of £830.9m (2014 18 interest rate swaps at a total notional value of £832m)
The net fair value of these contracts at 31 March 2015 was a Liability of £10t 3m {2014 £67 5m] As the hedging was
assessed as fully effective these unrealised losses have been recognised in the hedging reserve  Amounts held in the
hedging reserve are expected to impact the Comprehensive Income and Expendrture Statement over the penod to
December 2042
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27 Funding and financial risk management (continued)

The maturity of the forward fixing contracts is disclosed late in this note

Sensitivity analysis on interest risk
Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed interest instruments

All of the Group's non-denvative financial instruments with fixed rates of interest are accounted for at amortised
cost Fluctuations in market interest rates would therefore have no impact on the balance sheet or net income

figures in respect of these items
Fair value sensitivity analysis for derivative Instruments
As at 31 March 2015, the Group holds interest rate dernivative contracts with a combined notional value of £830 9m

{2014 £832m) which are designated as cash flow hedges

An increasefldecrease} of 100 basis points in interest rates would increasef{decrease) the fair value of the derivative
Instruments by £46 7m/f(£48 5m) (2014 £47 4mfES| 6m))

Inflation risk

The Group has a number of expasures to nflation including staff pay awards and fares revenue The Group has not
entered (nto any denvative instrument to manage its exposure to mflation sk At present, the nsk 1s partially offset
with index linked revenues and index Linked costs creating a natural hedge within the Group
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8

27 Funding and financial risk management {continued)

Maturity profile of derivatives

The Group’s dervative financial instruments have the following matunties.

2015 2015 2015 2014 2014 2014
Average Notional Average Notional
exchange Fair value amount exchange Farr value amount
rate £m £m rate £m £m
Foreign currency forward contracts
Buy euro
3 to 6 months 0.729 _ 3.2 - - R
6 to |2 months - - - 0 869 lo 3) 70
Sell euro
Less than 3 months 0.751 20.0 556.7 _ _ _
3 to 6 months 0.751 1.3 37.5 - - -
0.751 21.3 597.4 0 869 03) 70
2015 2015 2015 2014 2054 2014
Average Notional Average Notional
interest  Fair value amount interest  Fair value amount
rate {%) £m Em rate (%) £m £m
Interest rate hedges
Between two and five years 3.504 (39.4  500.0 3357 223 3500
After five years 3.810 (61.9)  330.9 3 821 (452) 4820
3.626 {101.3) 830.9 3626 (67 5) 8320

The Company does not hold any denvative financial instruments.
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27  Funding and financial risk management (continued)

Contractual maturity of derivatives

The following tables detail the Group's liquidity analysis for its denvative financial instruments The tables have been
drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual net cash inflows and outflows on derivative instruments that settle
on a net basis, and the undiscounted gross inflows and outflows on those denvatives that require gross settlement
When the amount payable or recewvable 1s not fixed, the amount disclosed has been determined by reference to the

projected interest rates as illustrated by the yield curves at the end of the reporting period

Between Between
Less than one and twoand  More than
one year two years five years five years Total
£m £m £m £m Em
Group — 2015
Derivatives settled gross
Foreign exchange forward contracts
Amounts receivable 597.4 - - - 597.4
Amounts payable (576.1) - - - {576.1)
Derivatives settled net
Interest rate swaps (25.0) (19.6) {22.5) {4.2) (71.3)
(3.7) {19.6) {22.5) (4.2) (50.0)
Group — 2014
Derivatives settled gross
Foreign exchange forward contracts
Amounts receivable 67 - - - 67
Amounts payable (7 0) - - - {7 0
Derivatives settled net
Interest rate swaps {22 6) (20 4) {26 4) - (30 (72 4)
(22 9) (20 4) {26 4) (30 (72 7)

The total asset or liability due to the Group as recogrused in the Statement of Financial Posttion 1s the fair value of
the denvatives as this represents the cost to terminate As such it differs from the total net contractual payments

shown 1n the table above At 3| March 2015, the fair value of the interest rate derivatives was a net bability of

£101 3m (2014 £71 Im) The farr value of forward foreign exchange derivatives was a net asset of £21 3m (2014 a

bability of £0 3m)

Transport Trading Limited Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015 75




Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

27  Funding and financial risk management (continued)

Contractual maturity of financial liabilities

The following table details the Group and the Company’s remaining contractual matunty for thewr non denvative
financial liabilities The table has been drawn up on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilibes based on the
earliest date on which the Group or Company can be required to pay, and therefore differs from the carrying value

and the fair value The table includes both interest and principal cash flows

Group - 2015
Trade and other payables
Borrowings

Finance lease lrabilities

Group - 2014
Trade and other payables
Borrowings

Finance lease Labilities

Company - 2015
Trade and other payables

Borrowings

Company - 2014
Trade and other payables

Borrowings

Between Between
Less than one and twoand  More than

one year two years five years five years Total
£m £m £m £m £m
1,545.0 8l.1 - - 1,426.1
- 8,098.8 - - 8,098.8

114.9 7.3 257.4 318.7 808.3
1,459.9 8,297.2 257.4 318.7 10,333.2
1,3627 368 - - 1,399 5
- 7,449 6 - - 7,449 6

1116 1149 2949 3985 9199
1,474 3 7.6013 2949 3985 9,769 0
154.4 8.6 - - 163.0

- 30.4 - - 30.4

154.4 39.0 - - 193.4
196 5 90 - - 2055

- 30.4 - - 04

196 5 394 - - 2359
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Fair values

In accordance with |AS 39, the far values of the financial assets and liabiities are included at the amount at which
the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing partres, other than in a forced or
liquidation sale

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the farr values-
* Cash and cash equivalents — approxmates to the carrying amount,

* Short term investments - approximates to the carrying amount because of the short matunty of these
instruments

* Long-term investments — by reference to bid prices at the close of business on the balance sheet date, within
Level | of the fair value hierarchy as defined within IFRS 7

* Loans to assocrated undertakings — determined by calculating the discounted value of the future cash flows
{redemption and interest) using appropriate interest rates, based on observable market data, in effect at the
balance sheet date at (evel 2 of the fair value hierarchy

* Trade and other receivables - approximates to the carrying amount

* Denvative financial instruments — In the absence of quoted market prices, denvatives are valued by using quoted
forward prices for the underlying commodity/currency and discounted using quoted interest rates (both as at the
close of business on the balance sheet datel Hence, denvatives are within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy as
defined within IFRS 7

< Forward exchange contracts — based on market data and exchange rates at the balance sheet date

< Interest rate swaps and forward starting interest rate swaps — based on the net present value of
discounted cash flows

* Trade and other payables - approximates to the carrying amount

* Long-term borrowings — based on market data in the case of fixed rate borrowings, and approximates to the
carrying amount In the case of short-term commercial paper

* Finance lease Liabilittes — approximates to the carrying amount

*  Where there 15 no active market, fair value 1s determined using valuation techniques These mclude using recent
arm’s tength transactions, reference to the current market value of another instrument which 15 substantially the
same, and discounted cash flow analysis and pricing models
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27 Funding and financial risk management {continued)

Group

Cash and cash equivatents
Trade and other receivables
Derivative finanoal instruments

Total financial assets

Trade and other payables
Borrowings and overdrafts
Finance lease liabilities
Derivative financial instruments
Total financial liabilities

Net financial liabilities

Company
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables

Total financial assets

Trade and other payables
Borrowings
Total financial liabilities

Net financial assets

2015 2015 2014 2014
Carrying Carrying

value Fair value value Fair value
£m £m £m £m
33.0 33.0 868 868
1,235.7 1,235.7 9263 926 3
22.6 22.6 - -
1,291.3 1.291.3 1,013 1 L0131
1,426.1 1,426.1 1,408.3 1,408 3
8,098.8 8,098.8 74496 7,449 6
570.5 570.5 6385 6385
102.6 102.6 678 &67.8
10,198.0 10,198.0 9,564 2 9,564 2
{8,906.7) (8,906.7) (8,551 1) {8,551 1}
2015 2015 2014 2014
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
value value value value
£m £m £m £m

1.9 1.9 107 107
339.7 339.7 3157 3t57
341.6 341.6 3264 326 4
170.1 £70.1 2126 2126
30.4 30.4 304 304
200.5 200.5 2430 243 0
141.1 141.1 834 834

The farr value of the Company's assets did not differ materiaily from the carrying value at 31 March 2015 or 2014
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28 Pensions
al Background
The Group offers retirement plans to its employees

The majonty of the Group's staff are members of the two sections of the TfL Pension Fund, namely the Public
Sector Secton and the Tube Lines Section The majonty of the Group's remaining staff belong to the Ralway
Pension Scheme, and the Tube Lines defined contribution scheme

b) Defined benefit schemes
TfL Pension Fund

The TfL Pension Fund 1s a final salary scheme established under trust Benefits are based on employees’ length of
service and final pensionable pay The Fund's Trustee 1s the TfL Trustee Company Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of Transport for London  Under the rules of the Fund, its 18 trustee directors are nominated in equal
numbers by Transport for London and on behalf of the Fund's membership

Every three years, the TfL Pension fund’s Actuary makes valuations and recommends the level of contributions to
be made by the partictpating employers to ensure long-term solvency of the Fund The latest avaiable valuation of
the Fund was carried out as at 31 March 2012 by the Actuary, a partner of consulting actuanes Towers Watson, using
the projected unit method A revised Schedule of Contnibutions was agreed between the Trustee and the employers
following the formal funding valuation of the TfL Pension Fund

For the Public Sector Secticn, employer's contnbutions for the penod from | April 2014 until 31 March 2020 wall
continue to be 31 0 per cent with an additional lump sum due by 31 March 2018 The recovery plan states that the
expectation i1s that the funding shortfall will be eliminated by 31 March 2020

For the Tube Ltnes Section, empleoyers’ contnbutions from | Apnl 2013 increased from 20 95 per cent to 23 15 per
cent, with additional lump sum contrnibuttons of £! 02Zm per month from | Apnl 20i2 untl 31 October 2015
{adjusted annually for inflation each | Apnl) The recovery plan states that the expectation 1s that the funding
shortfall will be eliminated by 31 October 2015

A full actuanal valuation of the Public Sector and Tube Lines section of the TfL Pension Fund as at 31 March 2015 1s
currently under way, and the results will be available later n 2015 Contrnbutions payable from | Aprl 2016 may
differ from those set out above, dependent on the outcome of the valuation

Railways Pension Scheme

Crossrail Limited (CRL) contnibutes to the Omnibus Section of the Ralways Pension Scheme {RPS) The RPS is a
defined benefit arrangement for rall industry employees The Omnibus Section 1s made up of 48 participating
employers, each {apart from CRL) having fewer than 50 active members in the scheme

The Omnibus Section of the RPS s a multi-employer scheme and 1s valued as a whole As a result of this, CRL 1s
unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and defined benefit obligation. It i1s therefore accounted for as a
defined contribution scheme under |AS 19

The last actuanal valuation of the Omnibus Section of the scheme was carred out at 3| December 2013 The
actuanal report showed that there was a deficit of assets over liabilities of £5 4m for the total Omnibus Section

The findings of the 2013 valuation report were translated into the current contribution level of 3| per cent, effective
from [ July 2015
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28  Pensions (continued)
Other schemes

The Group also contnbutes to a number of defined contrbution schemes, including the Tube Lines defined
contribution scheme

¢} Accounting

A valuation of the Public Sector and Tube Lines Sections of the TfL Pension Fund has been prepared for accounting
purposes on an IAS 19 basis as at 31 March 2015 The assumptions used by the actuary are the best estimates
chosen from a range of possible actuanal assumptions, whilst the present value of the sections’ defined benefit
obligations is denved from cash flow projections Due to the timescale covered, neither the assumptions nor the
cash flow projections may necessanly be borne out in practice

The defined benefit obligations for the two sections of the TfL Pension Fund have been calculated using the
mortality assumptions adcpted for the latest funding valuation as at 31 March 2012 Standard mortality tables were
used, adjusted to reflect the recent mortality expenence of the Fund's penstoners at that date. An allowance was
made for future mortality improvements based on the CMI 201 | projections with a long term improvement rate of
I O percent per annum

The Group’s parent, Transport for London, and the Company's fellow subsidiaries participate in the Public Sector
Section and 1t 1s not possible to identify the Company's or the Group’s share of the underlying assets and defined
benefit oblgations Thus, 1n accordance with the standard, the Group treats contributions to the Public Sector
Section as if they were contributions to a defined contribution plan The Group's contnbutions to the Section of
£216 Im (2013/14 £207 Om) have been charged to the Income Statement

The IAS 19 deficit on the Public Sector Section of the TfL Pension Fund at 3| March 2015 was £2,737 5m (2014
£2,336 2m) As stated above, it 15 not possible to identify the Group’s particular share of the deficit  Further details
can be found in the Statement of Accounts of Transport for London The |AS |9 deficit on the Tube Lines Section of
the TfL Pension Fund has been recorded in the Statement of Financial Position of these financial statements Further
details are disclosed in the tables below
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28 Pensions (continued)

Analysis of movements in the Tube Lines Section of the Tfi Pension Fund as included in the Statement of
Financial Position for the Group are as follows

Reconciliation of the Section's liabilities

fm
At | April 2014 2873
Current service cost 123
Interest cost 4
Employee contributions 22
Net remeasurement gains - financial 230
Net remeasurement gains - expenence (7 5)
Net remeasurement losses - demographic -
Actual benefit payments {20 4)
At 31 March 2015 3083
Reconciliation of fair value of the Section's assets

£m
At | Apnl 2014 2395
Interest income on scheme assets 00
Return on assets excluding interest income 227
Actual employer contributions 229
Employee contnibutions 22
Actual benefit payments (20 4)
Scheme expenses (06)
At 31 March 2015 2763
Net Deficit 320
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28 Pensions (continued)

Reconciliation of the Section's liabilities

At | Apnl 2013

Current service cost

Interest cost

Employee contributions

Net remeasurement losses - financial

Net remeasurement losses - experience
Net remeasurement losses - demographic
Actual benefit payments

At 31 March 2014

Reconciliation of fair value of the Section's assets

At | Apnt 2013

interest iIncome on scheme assets

Return on assets excluding interest income
Actual employer contnibutions

Employee contributions

Actual benefit payments

Scheme expenses

At 3| March 2014

Other schemes

£m

2940
123

22
(z5 1)
{01)
49

{12 0)

2873

£m

2138
83
50
227
22
(12 0}
{0 5)
2395

Contributions of £18 4m (2013/14 £17 9m) have been charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income, of
which £6 3m (2013/14 £6.4m) pertains to the British Transport Police Pension Fund white the remaining amount

was contributed towards various smaller Funds including the Railways Pension Scheme
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28 Pensions (continued)

d) Summary of pension totals for the year

Total pension service cost for the year Note
TfL Pension Fund [Public Sector Section)

TfL Pension Fund [Tube Lines Section)

Other schemes

Total pension service cost for the year 5

Scheme administrative expenses for the TfL Pension Fund (Tube Lines Section}

Amount included in cost of operations

Net interest on defined benefit obligations
TfL Pension Fund (Tube Lines Section)

Amounts charged to financial expenditure 8

Group Group
2015 2014
£m £m
216.6 2070
12,9 123
17.8 178
247.3 237 |
0.6 05
247.9 237 6
Group Group
2015 2014
£m Em
f.4 28
|.4 28
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28 Pensions (continued)

Total actuarial gains and losses recognised

Actuanal gain on TfL Pension Fund {Tube Lines Section}

The fair values of the assets of the Tube Lines Section were as follows:

Equities
Bonds

Total market value of assets

The main actuarial assumptions used for the Tube Lines Section were:

RPI inflation
Rate of increase in salanes

Discount rate

Group Group
2015 2014
£m fm
7.2 253

Value at 31  Value at 31

March March
2015 2014
Em £m
232.1 194 4
44.2 370
276.3 2314

At 3| March At 3| March

2015 2014

% %
2.75 320
2.75 370
2.95 405
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28 Pensions (continued)

e} Sensitivities

The Group's retirement benefit plans typically expose the Group to actuanal risks such as investment risk, interest
rate nsk, longevity risk and salary nisk Sensitivity analyses for the most significant actuanal assumptions made in
relation to these nsks are as set out below for the Tube Lines Section The analyses have been determined based on
reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occumng at the end of the reporting period, while
holding all other assumptions constant

* If the discount rate were 0 1% higher/llower], the defined benefit obligation would decrease by £3 3m
{increase by £3 4m)

* If the expected salary growth were increased/idecreased) by 0 1%, the defined benefit obligation would
increase by £3 5m {decrease by £3 5m)

The sensitivity analyses presented above may not be representative of the actual change 1n the defined benefit
obligation as it 1s unlikely that the change tn assumptions would occur in 1solation of one another as some of the
assumptions may be correlated No sensitivity information on the post retirement assumptions has been presented
as it assumed that a member's bability will be transferred into the Public Sector Section of the TfL Scheme on leaving
active services, with a corresponding inter-section transfer value paid which has been valued on the assumptions

that would be used in practice
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29 Called up share capital

Company and Group 2015 2014
£m £m

Asat | Apnl 3,930.0 2,3300
Issued during the year 1,500.0 1,6000
As at 3| March 5,430.0 39300
Number Number

Issued and fully paid up £1 shares 5,430m 3,930m

During 2014/15 TTL issued |,500m fully paid £1 ordinary shares (2013/14 |,600m fully paid £1 ordinary shares)

30 Related party transactions

During the year none of TTL's directors, key management personnel or parties related to them, have undertaken any
matenal transactions with the Company or its subsidianes {(2013/14 none)

The Company Is a wholly owned subsidiary of TfL TfL 1s a statutory corporation established by section 154 of the
Greater London Authonity Act 1999 It s a functional body of the Greater London Authority ("GLA”) and reports to
the Mayor of London TfL is classified as a government entity in accordance with IAS 24 Related party transactions
(“IAS 24”) and the Company and its subsidiaries are therefore also classified as government entities in accordance
with IAS 24

The GLA and its other functional bodies, and all other subsidianes of TfL, are considered to be related parties of the
Company Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated
on consolidation Materal transactions however between the Company and its subsidianes and other related parties
are outlined below

The Group and Company traded with the following related parties that are classified as government entities under
IAS 24
* Interest accrued by the Group on loans from Transport for London is disciosed in note 8,

+  Receipt of funding from Transport for London In the form of grants [notes 3 and 26), loans {note 19) or share
capital {notes |3 and 29),

+ Interest accrued on loans from Tube Lines [Finance) Plc to Transport for London 1s disclosed 1n note 7,

» Payment of management fees to TfL for various services and provision of equipment by TfL to the TTL
Group

+  Payment of management fees totaling £243 7m by TTL's subsidianes to TTL for varous services and
provision of equipment

= TfL makes payments to the Briish Transport Police for the provision of policing services on the Underground
and Overground railways
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31  Ultimate parent undertaking

The Company 1s a wholly owned subsidiary of Transport for London whose Board members are appointed by the
Mayor of London Copies of Transport for London's accounts will be available in due course from Windser House,

42-50 Victona Street, London SWIH 0OTL

32 Events occurring after the reporting date

As descnbed in note 15, on 10 February 2015, the Group entered into an Escrow Arrangement with members of the

Capital & Counties Properties PLC (Capco) group with a view to granting a 999 year lease over land at Earls Court into

a joint venture company, Earls Court Partnership Limited (ECP] ECP is a limited company, registered in England, that

1s owned 37% by a subsidiary of the TTL Group and 63% by a subsidiary of the Capco group It 15 equity accounted

for as an investment In an associate by the Group |

Subsequent to the year end, on 2 April 2015, a lease agreement was signed and the property was transferred for
consideration of £375 7m, in the form of loan notes from, and equity in, ECP The Group’s percentage holding in

ECP however remains unchanged at 37%

The sale of the property constitutes a non-adjusting post balance sheet event, and, as such, has nct been reflected
in these accounts As at 31 March 2015 the Group's investment in the Earl's Court land has been shown in assets
held for sale and 1s held at its sale valuation

There have been no other events occuming after the reporting date that would have a matenal impact on these

financial statements
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